
Rutland County Council                  
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP.
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 DX28340 Oakham

      

Ladies and Gentlemen,

A meeting of the RESOURCES SCRUTINY PANEL will be held in the  on 
Thursday, 27th April, 2017 commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be 
able to attend.

Yours faithfully

Helen Briggs
Chief Executive

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at 
www.rutland.gov.uk/haveyoursay

A G E N D A

APOLOGIES 

1) RECORD OF MEETING 
To confirm the record of the meeting of the Resources Scrutiny Panel held on 
16 February 2017 (previously circulated).

2) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any 
disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature if those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3) PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS 
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions received from Members of 
the Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 217. 

The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes. Petitions, declarations 
and questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received. 
Questions may also be submitted at short notice by giving a written copy to the 

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/haveyoursay


Committee Administrator 15 minutes before the start of the meeting. 

The total time allowed for questions at short notice is 15 minutes out of the 
total time of 30 minutes. Any petitions, deputations and questions that have 
been submitted with prior formal notice will take precedence over questions 
submitted at short notice. Any questions that are not considered within the time 
limit shall receive a written response after the meeting and be the subject of a 
report to the next meeting.

4) QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS 
To consider any questions with notice from Members received in accordance 
with the provisions of Procedure Rules No 219 and 219A.

5) NOTICES OF MOTION FROM MEMBERS 
To consider any Notices of Motion from Members submitted in accordance 
with the provisions of Procedure Rule No 220.

6) CONSIDERATIONS OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE PANEL FOR A 
DECISION IN RELATION TO CALL IN OF A DECISION 
To consider any matter referred to the Panel for a decision in relation to call in 
of a decision in accordance with Procedure Rule 206.

7) POVERTY IN RUTLAND - GREEN PAPER 
To receive Report No. 91/2017 from the Scrutiny Commission.
(Report circulated under separate cover)
(Pages 5 - 72)

8) STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY 
To receive Report No. 90/2017 from the Director for Resources.
(Pages 73 - 94)

9) FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ANNUAL REPORT 
To receive Report No. 79/2017 from the Director for Resources

10) REVIEW OF FORWARD PLAN 
To consider Scrutiny issues to review 
Copies of the Forward Plan will be available at the meeting

11) ANY URGENT BUSINESS 



To receive any items of urgent business which have been previously notified to 
the person presiding.

12) DATE AND PREVIEW OF NEXT MEETING 
Date to be agreed at Annual Council.

---oOo---

DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE RESOURCES SCRUTINY PANEL:

Miss R Burkitt (Chairman)

Mr O Bird
Mr K Bool
Mr B Callaghan
Mr G Conde
Mr W Cross
Mr J Lammie
Mrs D MacDuff
Miss G Waller
Mr O Hemsley

OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION





Report No: 91/2017 
PUBLIC REPORT 

SCRUTINY PANEL 

April 2017 

POVERTY IN RUTLAND: GREEN PAPER 

Report of the Scrutiny Commission 

Strategic Aim: All 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

N/A 

Contact Officer(s): Helen Briggs, Chief Executive  01572 758201 
hbriggs@rutland.gov.uk 

 Natasha Brown, Corporate Support 
Coordinator 

01572 720991 
nbrown@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors N/A 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Panel: 

1. Endorses the green paper which has been developed through the scrutiny process; 

2. Discusses the issues raised and provides a response to the consultation on the Green 
Paper; and 

3. Formulates recommendations which will be included in the White Paper to be 
presented to Council in June 2017. 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 To present the findings of the Scrutiny Poverty Review in a Green Paper which 
has been produced in order to encourage further discussion of the topics and 
some of the issues raised through consultation with Elected Members, Key 
Partners and Members of the Public;  

1.2 For the Panel to provide feedback on the discussion points highlighted by the 
paper as part of the consultation process and to formulate recommendations 
which will be included in the White Paper to be presented to Council in June 2017. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 The Scrutiny Commission agreed to undertake a review of Poverty in Rutland in 
August 2016.  The project objectives were: 



 To develop an agreed definition(s) of Poverty in Rutland; 

 To develop a Council policy in the form of a White Paper to be  
approved by Full Council that will outline for Rutland how the Council  
will act to positively impact on poverty within the County. 

2.2 An all Members Workshop held on 13 September 2016 identified a list of areas for 
further investigation (listed in Appendix A to the Green Paper).  These areas were 
then investigated and discussed at corresponding Scrutiny Panel meetings during 
November and December 2016 and February 2017. 

2.3 This green paper is a culmination of the work done at the Workshop (September 
2016) and within the scrutiny panels.  Further feedback on the format and content 
of the Green Paper was provided at an All Member Workshop in March 2017 
where the paper, the revised timetable and scope of the consultation was 
endorsed by those members present. 

3 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Through the Scrutiny function, the Poverty Review has identified that there are 
pockets of deprivation in Rutland and many people may find themselves 
challenged by their economic circumstances for periods of time.  Rutland is a 
largely affluent community and this can mean that support mechanisms are 
lacking and it is more difficult for those who need support to speak out.  The 
review has highlighted a number of areas where action is required to improve our 
support to those at ‘risk of’ or living in policy.  The Green Paper is not a final 
document but has been produced in order to encourage further discussion of 
these topics and some of the issues raised through consideration of the questions 
posed. 

3.2 Through a period of consultation the views of Elected Members, Key Partners and 
members of the public will inform the next steps of the review and a series of 
recommendations which will focus on both solutions and prevention.  These 
recommendations will be accompanied by an action plan to enable the outcomes 
of the review to be measured and monitored.  The recommendations and action 
plan will be presented to RCC Full Council in June 2017 in the form of a White 
Paper. 

4 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

4.1 There are no additional papers. 

5 APPENDICES  

5.1 Green Paper: Poverty in Rutland (Including Appendix A (Feedback from 
September Workshop) and Appendix B (Supporting Data). 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  



 

 

Pov

Gre

March

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

verty i

een Pa

h 2017  

in Rut

aper 

tland:: Scruutiny RRevieew 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Table
 

Forewo

Backgr

How to

Statisti

The Sc

Conclu

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

e of Cont

ord from th

round and 

o Respond 

cal Eviden

crutiny Pha

usion and N

ents 

he Scrutiny

Introductio

to the Gre

nce and Inf

ase ...........

Next Steps

y Commiss

on ............

een Paper 

formation .

................

s ...............

sion ..........

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

 

 

......... 3 

......... 4 

......... 8 

......... 9 

....... 10 

....... 18 



 

 

Forew
 

In Augu
Panels
approa
Rutland
new po
our me
as eac
in the p

Rutland
know th
see in 
loneline
when w
Rutland

Throug
area, b
feel fur
that we
manag
well-off
and ac

Scrutin
Worksh
summa
and su
endors

We wa
that the

The Sc

 

 

 

 

word from

ust 2016 S
s, decided t
ach to Ove
d County C
olicy for tha
embers' ex
h councillo
policy-mak

d is a grea
here are is
small area
ess and ru
we produce
d.  

gh the revie
but the resu
rther margi
e look more
ged in a wa
f, whilst en

ccessible to

ny Panels h
hop held in
arised in th
ggestions 

sed by Full 

ant to thank
e outcome

crutiny Co

m the Sc

Scrutiny Co
to underta
rview and 
Council ide
at area. By
perience, s

or who repr
king proces

at place to 
ssues of re
as of the Co
ural isolatio
e policies a

ew so far w
ult of this is
inalised an
e closely a

ay that mak
nsuring tha
o all that ne

have consi
n Septemb
his Green P
for further 
council.  

k everyone
 will be a g

ommission

crutiny C

ommission
ke a review
Scrutiny a

entifying a 
y adopting t
skills and k
resents the
ss 

live and wo
elative pove
ounty but t

on. It is righ
and our firs

we have le
s that thos
nd reluctan
at local nee
kes sure w

at support a
eed it. 

idered som
ber 2016. D
Paper whic
action wh

e who has 
genuinely p

n (Councill

Commiss

, with supp
w of Pover
nd would s
policy area
this new a
knowledge
em will be 

ork. Howev
erty. These
they can a
ht and prop
st aim will 

arnt that R
e suffering

nt to ask fo
eds and ho
we don’t ad
and advice

me key issu
Discussions
ch is aimed
ich will info

been invol
positive on

lors Burkitt

ion 

port from M
rty in Rutla
see the Sc
a and deve
pproach w

e, which wi
more direc

ver, even w
e can be v
lso be hidd
per that we
be to defin

Rutland is s
g from or o
r help.  Th

ow all our f
versely aff

e is readily 

ues followi
s held at th
d at promo
orm a polic

lved in the 
ne for the R

t, Conde, D

Members o
nd.  This w

crutiny func
eloping an 

we will gain
ll benefit a
ctly and po

within our p
isible issue
den away, 
e consider 
ne what pov

seen as a r
n the verge
is is why w
uture polic
fect those w
available, 

ng an All M
hose panel
ting discus

cy stateme

project so
Rutland Co

Dale and L

of Scrutiny 
would be a
ction within
over-archi

n the benef
all our resid
ositively inv

population
es that we 
for examp
all residen

overty is in 

relatively a
e of povert

we want to 
cies can be
who are le
well public

Member 
ls are 
ssion, feed
ent to be 

o far and ho
ommunity. 

Lammie) 

 

 

 new 
n 
ing 
fit of all 
dents, 
volved 

n, we 
can 

ple 
nts 

affluent 
ty can 
ensure 

e 
ess 
cised 

dback 

ope 



1

2

 

 

Backg
 

1) Scope
 
There i
poverty
families
‘povert
families
growth
additio
review 

i. 
ii. 
iii. 

2) The Pr
 
Having
worksh
membe

a

b

c

d

 
e

 
Followi
the fou
panels 
from ex
 

ground	a

e of the Re

is a strong
y”, but also
s where th
ty’ situation
s and our c
 will assist
n to this th
as follows

Education
Tackling th
Poverty Pr
 

rocess 

g establishe
hop was he
ers were in

a) Establis
awaren
 

b) Establis
 

c) Agree t
 

d) Identify 
the revi

e) Identify 

ing the wo
ur scrutiny 

(Appendix
xpert witne

nd	Introd

eview 

g need not 
o to make s
hey are at r
n. Our Corp
community
t in genera
here are thr
s:- 

 and Advic
he stigma 
roofing. 

ed the inte
eld in Sept
nvited. The

sh a databa
ess and kn

sh the obje

he process

the areas 
ew 

potential e

rkshop a p
panels to i
x A). This i
esses and 

duction

only to sup
sure that w
risk from ch
porate Pla
y to reach t
ting and su
ree strands

ce; 
of poverty;

ention to co
ember 201

e workshop

ase and pr
nowledge a

ectives for t

s for the re

which me

expert witn

programme
nvestigate
ncluded an
exploring s

pport those
we do all w
hanging ci
n highlight
their full po
upporting e
s of Corpo

; and 

onsider the
16 to which
p was used

rofile of po
amongst o

the review

eview 

mbers wis

nesses  

e of work w
e a range o
n examina
some of th

e who find 
we can to su

rcumstanc
ts the need
otential. Th
enhanced 

orate work 

e subject of
h all Rutlan
d to: 

overty infor
our Membe

w 

h to consid

was then p
of issues re
tion of the 

he solutions

themselve
upport indi

ces of movi
d to suppor
he focus w
economic 
that will be

f poverty w
nd County 

mation for 
ers 

der in more

ut in place 
elating spe
evidence 

s to the iss

es “living in
ividuals an
ing into a 
rt individua

within the pl
prosperity

e specific to

within Rutla
Council 

Rutland –

e detail as 

 to allow e
cifically to 
base, hea

sues identif

 

 

n 
nd 

als, 
lan on 

y. In 
o this 

and a 

 raise 

part of 

ach of 
their 
ring 
fied. 



 

 

This gr
scrutiny
recomm
forward

The pro

Stage 
All mem

Panel w
Paper 

All Mem

Green 

Consul

Panel r
and for
recomm
Paper 
White P

White P

 

3) Object

The rev
find the
that we
changi
primary

1. To 
2. To 

Cou
on p

reen paper
y panels s
mendation
d so far. 

ocess and

mber work

work to de

mber Work

paper to C

ltation on G

respond to
rmulate 
mendation

Paper to C

Paper to C

tives of th

view has id
emselves ‘
e do all we
ng circums
y objective

develop an
develop a 
uncil that w
poverty wit

r is a culmi
o far.  It is 
s but to dr

 planned ti

kshop 

velop Gree

kshop 

Cabinet 

Green Pap

o Consultat

s for White

Cabinet 

Council 

he Review 

dentified th
living in po
 can to sup
stances of 

e of this rev

n agreed d
Council po

will outline 
thin the Co

nation of t
not intend
aw togethe

imetable fo

Pan
 

en Adu

Chil

Plac

Res

 

N/A

per N/A

tion 

e 

Adu
Chil
Plac
Res
N/R

N/R

hat there is
overty’. How
pport indiv
moving int

view will be

definition(s)
olicy in the
for Rutland

ounty. 

the work do
ded to prov
er the issu

or the revie

nel 

ults 

dren’s 

ces 

sources 

 

 

ults 
dren’s 

ces 
sources 
R 

R 

s a real nee
wever, the
iduals and
to a ‘pover
e: 

) of Povert
e form of a 
d how the 

one at the 
vide conclu
es raised a

ew can be 

ed to do m
ere is also a
d families w
rty’ situatio

ty in Rutlan
White Pap
Council wi

Workshop
sions and 

and propos

found in th

Date 
13th Se

and 1st

and 2n

17th No
23rd Fe
24th No
9th Feb
10th No
16th Fe
28 Mar

Electro

3rd Apr
2017 
6th Apr
4th May
20th Ap
27th Ap
16th Ma

June C

more to sup
a strong ne

where they 
on.  With th

nd 
per to be ap
ll act to po

p and within

sals for act

he table be

eptember 2

t Decembe
nd February

ovember 2
ebruary 20
ovember 2
bruary 201
ovember 2
ebruary 20
rch 2017 

onic Circula

ril 2017 – 2

ril 2017 
y 2017 
pril 2017 
pril 2017 
ay 2017 

Council 

pport those
eed to mak
are at risk

hat in mind

pproved by
ositively im

 

 

n the 

tion put 

elow: 

2016 

er 2016 
y 

2016 and 
017 
2016 and 
7 

2016 and 
17 

ation 

28th April 

e who 
ke sure 
k from 
 the 

y Full 
pact 



4

5

 

 

4) The Co

In Rutla
Very ea

a) 

b) 
 

c) 

 
Membe
‘definiti

 
 
 
 

 
 

5) The De

Poverty
materia
econom
relative

Absolu
needs 

               
1 “ Pover

ontext of P

and the co
arly in the 

Relative p
community
of the pove
support m
prevalent a
started to 
 
Pockets of

The reality
experience
many insta
redundanc

ers were ke
ion’ of pov

Relative p
Crisis – ca
An accept
The Rutlan
solution fo
The vital im
Stigma as

efinition o

y is genera
al possess
mic and po
e. 

ute poverty
such as fo

                      
ty – United N

Poverty in

ontext looks
process th

overty is a
y individua
erty spectr
echanisms
are scarce
emerge in 

f deprivatio

y is that alm
e poverty a
ances beyo
cy or relatio

een theref
verty. They 

overty and
aused by a
tance that ‘
nd’s isolate

or poverty 
mportance
sociated w

of Poverty 

al scarcity,
sions or mo
olitical elem

y or destitut
ood, clothin

                      
ations Educat

n Rutland

s and feels
he following

a key issue
als and fam
rum. As the
s that migh
e. E.g. It is

Rutland.

on exist wit

most anyon
at a point in
ond their c
onship bre

ore not to 
were clea

d disadvant
a range of c
‘Capital ric
ed commu

e of informa
with poverty

 dearth, or
oney. It is a
ments. Pov

tion refers 
ng and she

 
tional, Scientif

s different 
g became 

e within Rut
milies living
e incidence
ht be prese
only recen

thin otherw

ne within th
n time thro

control. For
eakdown. 

be restricte
ar that this 

tage 
circumstan
ch’ does no
unity brings

ation, advic
y and entit

r the state 
a multiface
verty may b

to the lack
elter1. 

fic and Cultur

to that with
apparent:-

tland. It isn
g next to ea
e of povert

ent in areas
ntly that dis

wise affluen

he Rutland
ough chang
r example 

ed in their 
review was

nces 
ot equate to
s with it diff

ce and sup
tlement to a

of one who
eted conce
be defined 

k of means

al Organisatio

hin the nati
- 

n’t unusual
ach other a
ty is compa
s where po
scount reta

nt commun

d communi
ges in circu
bereavem

interpretat
s about:- 

o the mean
ferent caus

pport 
assistance

o lacks a c
pt which in
as either a

s necessar

on 2014” 

ional conte

l to find wit
at opposite
aratively lo
overty is m
ailers have

nities. 

ity can 
umstance 
ent, illness

tion of a 

ns to live o
ses of  and

e 

certain amo
ncludes so
absolute of

ry to meet 

 

 

ext. 

thin a 
e ends 
ow the 

more 
 

- in 
s, 

on 
d 

ount of 
cial, 
f 

basic 



6

 

 

Relativ
pattern
person

The rec
on thos
Nationa
nationa
Table 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

6) The De
 
Pov
info
feel
und
whi
hide
thei

 

 

 

               
2 Monito
3 We can
Rowntree

ve poverty 
n’ – they’re
n enjoys. 

cent period
se living in
al policy In
al figures e
1 

In 2014 th
equating to
The numb
The numb
household
in a row 
Evictions b
The numb
1.4 million
Over the la
while child
Child pove
age pover

efinition o

verty in Ru
ormation an
l out of rea

derstood.   
ch on the o
e or ignore
ir issues.   

                      
ring poverty a
 solve poverty
e foundation 

generally m
 excluded 

d of nation
 real and r

nstitute2 an
etc. include

ere were 1
o 21% of t

ber of priva
ber of hous
ds in tempo

by landlord
ber of peop
 children a
ast 25 yea

d poverty ra
erty is proje
rty is likely 

of Poverty 

tland man
nd advice c
ach in term

In Rutland
outside ap

e the burde

                      
and social exc
y in the UK ‐ a
‐ September 6

means tha
from the a

al and glob
relative pov
nd the Jose
ed in Table

13.5 million
he UK pop
te renters 
eholds acc

orary accom

ds are near
ple in pover
are in long-
rs income 
ates remai
ected to ris
to rise in th

in Rutlan

ifests itself
can be diff

ms of both c
d those in p
ppears to b
en of their f

 
lusion 2016 (M
a strategy for g
6th 2016 

at a person
activities an

bal austeri
verty. Rece
eph Rownt
e 1. 

n people liv
pulation 
in poverty 
cepted as 
mmodation

r a 10 year
rty in a wo
-term work
poverty am

in high at 2
se it sharpl
he longer t

d 

f in a feelin
ficult to acc
cost and th
poverty ma

be relatively
financial di

MPSE) – 7th D
governments,

 cannot aff
nd opportu

ty has led 
ent docum
tree Found

ving in low 

has doubl
homeless 
n have bot

r high 
rking famil

kless house
mongst pe
29% 
ly over the
term unles

ng of financ
cess and s
he ability to
ay feel mar
y affluent a
ifficulties re

ecember 2016
, businesses, c

ford an ‘ord
nities that 

to need to
ents produ
ation3 (JR

income ho

ed over th
and the nu

th increase

y is 55% a
eholds 
nsioners fr

 next four y
ss action is

cial isolatio
services an
o understan
rginalised f
and as suc
esulting in 

6 ‐ New policy
communities 

dinary livin
the averag

o refocus a
uced by the
F) identifie

ouseholds 

e last deca
umber of 
ed for five y

a record hig

rom 40% to

years - wo
s taken now

on where 
nd support 
nd and be 
from a soc

ch people m
an escala

y Institute 
and citizens ‐ 

 

 

ng 
ge 

ttention 
e 
ed the 

ade 

years 

gh 

o 13% 

orking 
w 

can 

ciety 
may 
tion of 

Joseph 



 

 

How	t
 

This pa
an inte

The pa

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Gr
will be 

Respon
April 20

 

 

to	Respon

aper is inte
erest will re

aper will be

Citizens A
Healthwat
East Leice
Clockwise
Oakham M
Uppingham
Market Ov
Empingha
Director fo
Town/Pari
Churches 
Rutland P
Leicesters
Leicesters
Spire Hom
Communit
Leics and 
Rotary Clu
Leics, Nor
Rutland Sc
Rutland N
Rutland Yo
Rutland Lo

reen Pape
encourage

nses to the
017. 

nd	to	the

ended as th
espond. 

e distribute

Advice Rutl
tch Rutland
estershire a
e Credit Un
Medical Pra
m Surgery 
verton and 
am Medical
or Public H
sh Counci
Together 
rimary and

shire Police
shire Comb
mes 
ty Agents 
Rutland W

ub of Rutla
rthamptons
couts 
eighbourh
outh Coun
ocal Strate

r will be pu
ed to respo

e consultat

e	Green	P

he start of 

d to Electe

and  
d  
and Rutlan
ion  
actice 

Somerby 
l  Centre 
ealth 
ls 

d Secondar
e 
bined Fire A

Womens Ins
and 
shire and R

ood Watch
ncil 
egic Partne

ublicised on
ond. 

tion on the

Paper	

a consulta

ed Membe

nd Clinical 

Surgery 

ry Schools

Authority 

stitute 

Rutland Arm

h 

ers 

n the RCC

e RCC Pov

ation and it 

rs and key

Commissi

s 

my Cadet 

C Website a

verty Revie

is hoped t

y partners i

oning Grou

Force 

and memb

w should b

that anyon

including: 

up 

bers of the 

be received

 

 

e with 

public 

d by 28 



 

 

Statis
 

In exam
includin
docum
 
Rutland
authori
suffer f
aware 
Rutland

A snap
informa
Rutland
 
Table 2

Food b

Homele

Childre
School

Househ

Hardsh

Housin

Numbe

Debt e

 

This ov
be foun

               
4 Rutland
advice R

tical	Evid

mining pov
ng nationa
ent produc

d is 148/15
ities in Eng
from incom
of health in
d currently

pshot of Ru
ation dispe
d. 

2 

bank vouch

essness a

en eligible a
l Meals 

holds living

hip applica

ng Benefits

er of childre

nquiries to

verview of 
nd in Appe

                      
d – the best 

Rutland 

dence	an

verty within
al and local
ced by Citiz

52 in terms
gland. How

me, employ
nequalities
y affects 50

utland spec
els the ‘myt

hers issued

pplications

and claimi

g in Fuel P

tions 

s claimants

en living in

o the Rutlan

informatio
endix B – S

                      
place to live

nd	Inform

n Rutland a
l sources. 
zens Advic

s of the ind
wever we d
yment, edu
s and barrie
05 children

cific data in
th’ that pov

d in Rutlan

s 

ng for Free

Poverty 

s  

n poverty 

nd CAB 

n is drawn
Supporting 

 
…… For eve

mation	

a number o
Information
ce Rutland

dex of mult
do know tha
ucation, ski
ers to hous

n under 16 

n relation t
verty and r

nd 306

67 (

e 272

10.6

205

203

8.5%

141

n from a mu
Evidence,

eryone? A re

of data sou
n has also 

d in 20164.

tiple depriv
at there ar
ills and tra
sing and fu
(8.5%)). 

o poverty i
relative pov

6 issued du

(15/16) 

2 (15/16) 

6% (2014)

5 received 

31 

% 

5 during 1

uch larger 
, Poverty in

port on pove

urces have 
been draw

vation uppe
e wards w
ining depri
uel poverty

is captured
verty does

uring 2014/

during 15/

5/16 

evidence b
n Rutland. 

erty in Rutlan

e been exa
wn from a 

er tier loca
within Rutla
ivation. We
y. Child Po

d in Table 
sn’t exist in

/15 

16 

base which

nd 2016. Citiz

 

 

mined 

l 
nd that 
e are 
overty in 

2. This 

h can 

zens 



 

 

The	S
 
Further
of area
outcom

1) Re
an

Iss

Pro

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

crutiny	P

r to the init
as was high
me of these

eview of th
d 16 Febr

sues Ident

 The aw
solutio
other i

 A num
crisis s
year; 

 Most a
award
allevia

 The C
what i

 It was 
made 

oposals fo

 To upd
suppo

 To cre
better 

Questions

1) Ho
to 

2) Co
3) Is 
4) Co

ad

Phase	

tial worksh
hlighted fo
e investigat

he Crisis F
uary 2017

tified 

ward syste
on rather th
issues that

mber of peo
situations e

awards are
 achieved 

ate the cris
Council doe

mpact (if a
not curren
contact fo

or Action 

date the lis
ort. 
eate a profi

understan

s 

ow could th
ensure bet

ould the fun
the curren

ould award
dvice/suppo

hop attende
r further in
tions can b

Fund (Res
7) 

em focuses
han analys
t may be c
ople submi
even thoug

e not subje
its purpos
is; 

es not curre
any) the cri
ntly possibl
r support d

st of identif

ile of peop
nd the circu

he availabil
tter take up
nding be u
t scheme w
s be made
ort? 

ed by Mem
nvestigation
be found b

sources Sc

s more on 
sing the ap
contributing
t repeat ap
gh the fund

ect to any ty
e or if refu

ently routin
sis funds a
le to track 
due to Data

fied organi

ple who app
umstances

lity of supp
p? 
sed in a di
working to 

e on condit

mbers on 13
n by individ
elow: 

crutiny Pa

the crisis i
plicants ov

g to their ne
pplications
d is limited

ype of revi
sed what s

nely review
awarded h
which clien
a protectio

sations tha

ply for crisi
s of those w

port/entitle

fferent way
help those

ion that an

3 Septemb
dual Scruti

anel 10 No

tself and a
verall situa
eed for sup
 for the sa
 to 3 award

ew or follo
steps the a

w the syste
ad on the c
nts referre
n issues.  

at were ab

is fund awa
who apply f

ments be t

y?   
e in need? 
 applicant 

ber 2016, a
ny Panels

ovember 2

an immedia
ation, lifesty
pport; 
me or sim
ds per fina

ow up to se
applicant to

m to disco
claimants; 
d to CAB a

le to provid

ards in ord
for suppor

targeted 

seeks 

 

 

a list 
.  The 

017 

ate 
yle and 

ilar 
ancial 

ee if the 
ook to 

over 
and 

actually 

de 

der to 
rt. 



 

 

2) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) 

Financial 
 
Issues Ide
 

 Individ
often t

 It was 
 People
 It wou

assista
signpo

Debt Reco
and 16 Fe

Issues Ide

 People
 People
 People

incurri
 People

time a
keep t

 Sendin
it just 
paying

 Housin
growin

Question

5) Ho
sta

6) Ho
m

7) Co
Ru

8) Ho
9) Ho

re

Awarenes

entified 

duals were
too late; 
considere

e are not a
ld be helpf
ance was u
osted to the

overy Pro
ebruary 20

entified 

e with debt
e are reluc
e often ign
ng fees lat
e often agr

and then an
to the arran
ng debts to
makes thin
g a lot mor
ng Benefit 
ng as peop

ns 

ow could p
age? 
ow can Chi
ore financi
ould the pr
utland Com
ow could th
ow can info
covery lett

ss (Resou

 often relu

ed importan
aware what
ful if the lis
up-to-date
ese associ

cess (Res
017) 

t are not a
ctant to con
ore the ea
ter on; 
ree to paym
n unexpect
ngement s
o bailiffs w
ngs worse 
e than thei
overpaym

ple don’t re

people be e

ildren and 
ially literate
rovision of 
mmunity be
he recover
ormation c
ters be imp

urces Scru

ctant to se

nt to teach 
t help is av

st of identif
.  People i
iations.   

sources S

lways in fin
ntact the C
arly letters 

ment arran
ted cost co

so they stop
works as lot

as more fe
ir original d

ment debt w
eport their c

encouraged

Young peo
e? 
financial a

e improved
ry process 
contained w
proved? 

utiny Pane

eek advice 

financial li
vailable; an
fied organis
n financial 

crutiny Pa

nancial diff
Council or a

and miss o

ngements t
omes along
p paying a
ts of people
ees are ad
debt; 
will get mor
change in 

d to seek a

ople be sup

advice and 
d? 
be improv

within Coun

el 10 Nove

and when 

ife skills at
nd 
sations wh
difficulty c

anel 10 No

ficulties; 
avoid our c
opportunitie

that they ca
g that mea
ltogether; 
e pay but f
ded so peo

re difficult t
circumstan

dvice at an

pported to 

support to

ed? 
ncil Tax/De

ember 201

 they did it

t an early a

ho could als
could then 

ovember 2

calls; 
es to avoid

an afford a
ans they do

for some p
ople end u

to collect a
nces in a ti

n early 

become 

o the 

ebt 

 

 

6) 

t was 

age; 

so offer 
be 

2016 

d 

at the 
on’t 

people 
up 

and it is 
imely 



 

 

 

 

4) 

 

 

 

 

 

way a
overpa

 Furthe
and th

 
 
 
 
 
 

Childcare
17 Novem

Issues Ide

 The pr
entitle
implem
Early Y

 The im
impac

 Suppo
inform
and ta

 Paying
provid
or wou
provis
 

Question

10) Ho
rea

11) Ho
ma
su

Questions 

12) Wha
chil

13) How
on c

14) Cou
flex
club

15) How
16) Wha

fund
17) How

attr

nd people 
ayment ba
er welfare r
he Benefit C

e and the i
mber 2016 

entified 

roposed E
ments for t

mented, co
Years Prov

mminent (N
t dispropor

ort needs to
mation to en
argets fami
g for essen
ers repres
uld like to w
ion of this 

ns 

ow can peo
alistic paym
ow could th
anaged to 

uffering fro

at are the k
ldcare in R
w might oth
childcare? 
uld free ent
xible so it c
bs? 
w could the
at can be d
ding to sup
w can after
active? 

are often o
ck; and 
reform cha
Cap may im

mpact on 
and 23 Fe

arly Years
three to fo

ould have a
viders; 

National) cu
rtionately o
o be close
nsure the s
lies most i

ntial childca
sents a sign
work full tim
care. 

ople be enc
ment arran
he impact o
mitigate th
m Poverty?

key consid
Rutland? 
her areas o

titlement fo
could cover

e take up o
done to ens
pport child
r school clu

on low inco

anges such
mpact on h

 Poverty (
ebruary 20

 National F
ur year old
a significan

uts in fund
on Rutland
ly monitore
small amou
n need. 
are before
nificant fina
me.  Many 

couraged t
ngements?
of Universa

he impact o
? 

erations fo

of the Coun

or childcar
r longer tim

of free scho
sure Rutlan

dcare provi
ubs be mad

omes and 

h as the rol
household 

(People (C
017) 

Funding Fo
ds from 15 
nt impact o

ing for chil
d residents
ed though 
unt of fund

 and after 
ancial burd
people re

o set up m
 
al Credit an
on those m

or influenci

ncil, and pa

e be impro
me periods

ool meals b
nd receives
sion? 
de more af

struggle to

ll out of Un
budgets. 

Children’s)

ormula to in
to 30 hour

on the viab

d care sup
; and 
the collect
ing has the

school from
den for par
ly on friend

anageable

nd the bene
ost at risk 

ing provisi

artners, wo

oved or mad
, or after sc

be improve
s a fair allo

fordable an

o pay their 

niversal Cr

) Scrutiny

ncrease fre
rs, if 
ility of Rut

pport could

tion of add
e greatest 

m organise
rents who w
ds and fam

e and 

efit cap be
of 

ion of 

ork impact 

de more 
chool 

ed? 
ocation of 

nd 

 

 

edit 

y Panel 

ee 

land 

d 

itional 
impact 

ed 
work, 

mily for 

 



 

 

5) 

6) 

Rutland Ch
Strategy (P

 
Issues Ide
 
 The cu

review
 

Homeless

Issues Ide

 The R
rental 
plans 

 A brea
homel

 Housin
under 
not me

 Housin
accom
were t
family 

 The m
o   Iss
o   Pa

 Povert
 Reduc

homel
 The C

bedroo
 A Soc

result 
as a re
option

 There 
 Disrup

had lim
 Servic

financ

hildren, Yo
People (Ch

entified 

urrent plan
w and amen

sness (Pla

entified 

Rent Depos
deposits. 
set up, but
akdown of 
essness m
ng allocatio
occupatio

eet tenants
ng at St Ge

mmodation 
to split, ser
potentially

majority of h
ues with S
rents / rela
ty affected
ced toleran
essness; 

Council did 
oms home
ial Housing
was that th
esult of inc
s; 
was more

ptive familie
mited optio
ce users in 
ial and pra

oung Peopl
hildren’s) S

n and strate
nded in lin

aces Scrut

sit Scheme
Efforts wer
t often the 
the reason

might help t
on worked
n of homes
s aspiration
eorges Ba
once the b

rvice perso
y becoming
homelessn

Social and P
ationship b
 people th

nces of Soc

not curren
es for large
g marketin
he number
creasing aw

e the Counc
es with com

ons given th
need of ho

actical aspe

le and Fam
Scrutiny Pa

egy were s
e with the 

tiny Panel

e was desig
re made to
full amoun

ns (hidden 
to understa
 on a point
s, howeve
ns; 
rracks wou
base had b
onnel woul
g homeles

ness cases
Private Ho
reakdown
at were as
cial Housin

ntly have en
er families;
ng exercise
r of people
wareness t

cil could do
mplex issu
he rural na
ousing rela
ects of mo

milies Plan 2
nel 17 Nov

satisfactory
outcomes 

l 24 Novem

gned to he
o recoup th
nt was not 
pressures

and the ca
ts system, 
r, propertie

uld still be 
been close
d stay in th
s; 

s in Rutland
ousing/Lan

sset rich bu
ng Landlor

nough hou

e was carri
e on the Ho
through ma

o regarding
ues that ma
ature of Ru
ated suppo
ving home

2016-2019/
vember 201

y, but shou
of the Pov

mber 2016

lp with the
his money, 
repaid; 

s) for housi
auses; 

which help
es for older

used for fo
ed. Issues a
he home w

d were due
dlords 

ut cash poo
ds, could r

using stock

ed out 2 ye
ousing Reg
arketing So

g commun
ay result in
utland; 
ort often str
e because 

/Child Pove
16) 

uld be kept
verty Revie

6) 

e costs of p
with paym

ing allocat

ped to avo
r people of

orces 
arise if fam

with the res

e to: 

or; 
result in re

k, particula

ears ago. T
gister incre
ocial Hous

nication; 
n homeless

ruggle with
of their 

 

 

erty 

t under 
ew. 

private 
ment 

ion and 

oid the 
ften did 

milies 
st of the 

peat 

rly 4/5 

The 
eased 
sing 

sness 

h 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7) 

Pro

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

experi
can be
 

 

Domestic

Issues Ide

 Dom
 Alth

new
Con

 The
was
the 

oposals fo

 Rev
 Upd
 

Question

18) W
pe
ac

19) H
su

20) W
un

Questions

21)  Ho
occ
pov

22) Are
and

23) Wha
dom
into

24) Wha
con
circ

ences or t
e extensive

c Abuse (P

entified 

mestic abu
hough supp
w contract 
ntract shou
e Council c
s underway
LLR Polic

or Action 

view of LLR
date on the

ns 

What suppo
eople in or
ccommoda
ow might P
upport imp

What furthe
nderstand 

 

w might th
currences o
verty? 
e there othe
d perpetrato
at can be d

mestic abus
o financial c
at can be d

ncerned wh
cumstances

heir level o
e but is foc

Places Scr

use could b
port for vic
arrangeme

uld be kept
currently ha
y to put a p

ce and Crim

R Joint Co
e Perpetrat

ort could be
rder to assi
ation? 
Private and
proved sust
r informati
causes of 

he perpetra
of domestic

er schemes
ors of dom
done to sup
se, especia
crisis? 

done to sup
ho no longe
s outside t

of skills – A
cused on p

rutiny Pan

be both the
ctims of do
ents had b
t under rev
as no Perp
programm

me Commi

ontract in 1
tors Progra

e provided 
ist with acc

d Social La
tainable ac
on could b
homelessn

ators progr
c abuse an

s that could
mestic abus

pport the c
ally those w

pport the v
er have acc
their contro

Assistance
promoting i

nel 24 Nov

e cause an
mestic abu
een put in 

view; 
petrator Pro
e in place 
ssioner) 

2 months’ 
amme to b

to econom
cessing ap

andlords be
ccess to af
be collated 
ness in Ru

amme be t
nd the resu

d enhance 
se? 
children fro
which are i

victims and
cess to fina
ol? 

provided t
ndependen

ember 201

d the effec
use had im
place, the

ogramme i
with fundin

time. 
be provided

mically disa
ppropriate 

e encourag
ffordable ho
in order to
tland? 

argeted to 
lting impac

services fo

om househ
immediatel

d individual
ancial supp

to service 
nce. 

16) 

ct of Pover
mproved sin
e LLR Joint

in place (W
ng support

d in due co

advantaged

ged to 
ousing? 

o better 

reduce 
ct on 

for victims 

olds in 
ly placed 

ls 
port due to

 

 

users 

rty; 
nce 
t 

Work 
ted by 

ourse. 

d 

o 



 

 

8) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9) 

 

 

Health Ine
Decembe

Issues Ide

 Tho
hea

 Bei
 Imp

loca
com

 Tra
 Spo

phy
 Loc

app
pro

 Edu
sch

 

Access to
Decembe

Issues Ide

Rutland w
were a ba
more afflu
There was
internet, b
internet an

Questions

25)  Ho
who

26) Wh
on 

27) Wh
tee

28) How
act

equalities 
r 2016) 

entified 

ose who ar
althier lifest
ng sedenta

provements
al sports cl
mmunity to
ansport and
orts activiti
ysical activ
cal initiative
propriately,
mote activ
ucation on 
hools could

o Services
r 2016) 

entified 

as conside
rrier to acc
ent area w

s an assum
ut the elde

nd others m

s 

ow could ac
o are econ
at are the o
healthy liv
at can be d
nagers in R
w can more
ivities for y

(People (A

re econom
tyle choice
ary has a h
s could be 
lubs and a
 take part;
d costs of a
es did not 
ity would h
es and sch
, which ma

vities in rura
the benefi

d be improv

s (People (

ered to be 
cessing ser
where a per
mption that 
erly, frail an
might not b

ccess to “a
omically d
opportunit
ing and ba
done to inc
Rutland? 
e volunteer
young peop

Adults an

mically disad
es in terms
high impac
 made reg

activities to 
  
activities c
appeal to 

have a pos
hemes wer
ade it more
al location
its of activi
ved. 

(Adults an

reasonably
rvices.  It i
rson might
t everyone 
nd disabled
be able to a

active recre
isadvantag
ies for sup

asic cooker
crease phy

rs be enco
ple? 

d Health) 

dvantaged
s of diet an
ct on heart 
arding com
encourage

ould be res
all people,

sitive impac
re not alwa
e difficult fo
s; and 
ity/exercise

nd Health)

y affluent, 
s more diff
t feel they w
could acce

d might no
afford inter

eation” be 
ged? 
pporting Co
ry skills in 
sical activi

ouraged to 

Scrutiny P

 may find i
d activity/e
disease a

mmunicatin
e members

strictive; 
, but increa
ct; 

ays support
or those wo

e and healt

) Scrutiny 

but rurality
ficult to ask
were in the
ess inform
t have acc

rnet conne

improved f

ommunity e
Rutland? 
ity particul

support sp

Panel 1 

it difficult to
exercise; 
nd diabete

ng and pro
s of the 

asing any 

ted  
orking hard

thy eating 

Panel 1 

y and isola
k for help i
e minority;

mation throu
cess to the
ction; 

for those 

education 

larly in 

ports 

 

 

o make 

es; 
moting 

d to 

in 

ation 
n a 

ugh the 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10) 

 

 

 

 

There was
and also im
also help p
volunteers
People wh
family or fr

 

Fuel Pove
2017) 

Issues Ide

Many prop
gas supply
worked wi
some prop
the existin
Improvem
building st
Publicity s
poverty an
not sufficie
Statistics o
energy eff
but would 
being low.
possibly h
income an
poverty lin

Questio

29)  H
in
In

30) H
o

31) H
c
(P
e

s a need to
mproving c
people with
s; and 
ho have mo
riends that

erty (Peop

entified 

perties and
y.  Spire H
th the Cou
perties in O
g electric h
ents to ins
tatus or wa
surrounding
nd other iss
ent as not 
on fuel pov
ficient prop
not be inc
  Converse
aving high

nd fuel bills
ne; 

ns 

How do we
nformation
nformation

How do we 
other sectio
How can co
communitie
Pilot Servic

engagemen

o look towa
community
h accessin

oved into t
t live locally

ple (Adults

d some villa
omes, who

uncil to inst
Oakham.  W
heating pro

sulation cou
as in a con
g initiatives
sues was m
all househ
verty could
perty with a
luded in th
ely, rural s

h energy re
s would not

e ensure th
n about ser
n Service?

address is
ons of the c
ommunity b
es, such as
ce), be util

nt in isolate

ards the vo
y relations. 
ng services

the area m
y and so w

s and Heal

ages in the
o manage 
tall gas and
Where this
ovision; 
uld be limit
servation a
s and help 
mainly inte

holds had a
d be flawed
a low hous
he statistics
olid wall pr

equirement
t result in r

hat people c
rvices thro

ssues of He
community
based serv
s Commun
ised to pro
ed areas?

oluntary se
 Parish Co

s and enco

ay not hav
will be isola

lth) Scruti

e county w
social hou
d subsequ
 was not p

ted where 
area; 
around en

ernet based
access to t
d, for exam
ehold inco
s due to th
roperties w
ts but man
residual inc

can access
ugh better 

ealth Litera
y? 
vices which
ity Agents 

omote volu

ctor, Comm
ouncils and
urage/coo

ve a netwo
ated in that

ny Panel 2

were wholly
sing stock
ently centr

possible the

a property

nergy switc
d.  It was fe
he internet

mple: a well
me could s
e energy r

would fall in
y have a h
come bein

s appropria
use of the 

acy in the p

h link into l
and Welln
nteering an

munity Age
d Meetings
rdinate 

ork of suppo
t way. 

2 Februar

y without a 
k in the Cou
ral heating
ey had upg

y had listed

ching, fuel 
elt that this
t; 
l-insulated
still be in p
requiremen
nto the sta
higher hous
g below th

ate 
e Rutland 

poorer and

local 
ness Adviso
nd 

 

 

ents 
s may 

ort in 

ry 

mains 
unty, 
 in 

graded 

d 

s was 

, 
poverty 
nts 
tistics 
sehold 
he 

d 

ors 



 

 

 

 

Propos

 

 

 

 

11) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Propos

 

Energy co
the same w
Spire Hom
tenants to 
was not po

sals for A

Further inv
companies
and to adv

 

 

Transport

Issues Ide

There is a
Rutland, th
Call Conne
service wa
Raising aw
their own c
There wer
County inc
were not a
Non-emer
allowed pe
medical ne
 Transport
did not neg

sals for A

Further ev
informatio

Questions

32) Ho
33) Ho

up

osts did not
way as cou

mes could a
supply it.  

ossible to a

Action 

vestigation
s to look at
vise on effi

t Poverty 

entified 

 rural trans
here was li
ect was be
as very exp
wareness o
communiti
re several s
cluding in W
always wel
rgency med
eople to ac
eed; and 
t Poverty in
gate from 

Action 

valuation of
n regardin

s 

ow can info
ow could as
pgrades? 

t attract fin
uncil tax m
ask tenants
Without kn

ascertain w

n into pilot s
t alternativ
cient use o

(Places Sc

sport netwo
ittle or no e
eing consid
pensive for
of the issue
es may all
successful
Whissendin
l-publicise
dical transp
ccess trans

n Rutland w
the impact

f the recen
g issues a

ormation an
ssistance b

nancial ass
might; and

s for inform
nowledge 
which prop

scheme w
ve ways to 
of energy.

crutiny Pa

ork connec
evening an
dered as p
rm of publi
es and pro
eviate som
l “Good Ne
ne, Market
d; 
port was n
sport to ho

was proba
t on those 

nt RCC Tra
round tran

nd advice b
be offered 

istance fro

mation but 
of househo

perties suffe

hich was b
share adv

anel 9 Feb

cting the s
nd Sunday 
art of the T
ic transpor

omotion of 
me of the is
eighbour S
t Overton a

not well pub
spital appo

bly a low r
that suffer

avel Survey
nsport pove

be better p
to househo

om governm

there was 
old income
ered from f

being funde
ice on ene

bruary 201

maller mar
services; 

Transport R
rt; 
volunteers

ssues; 
chemes” r
and Greeth

blicised, th
ointments a

risk and dis
ed from Tr

y in order t
erty. 

ublicised?
olds requir

ment sourc

no obligat
e or fuel co
fuel povert

ed by ener
ergy switch

7) 

rket towns 

Review, bu

s helping w

running wit
ham, but th

his service 
as long as

spersed, b
ransport Po

to collate 

? 
ring energy

 

 

ces in 

tion on 
osts it 
ty. 

rgy 
hing 

in 

ut this 

within 

thin the 
hese 

s had a 

ut that 
overty. 

y 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

	

Concl
 

The Re
poverty
poverty
encour
conside

Poverty
have b
Rutland
raise a

Throug
of the p
recomm
recomm
the rev

 

Qu

usion	an

eview so fa
y, financial
y.  This Gre
rage furthe
eration of t

y can be d
been consid
d, it is hop

awareness 

gh the cons
public will i
mendation
mendation
view to be m

uestions 

34)  How c
acces

35) How c
assist
Neigh

nd	Next	St

ar has cove
 awarenes
een Paper

er discussio
the questio

ifficult to d
dered are e
ed that the
of these m

sultation th
inform the 
s which wi
s will be ac
measured 

can existin
sible? 

can people 
t those at r
bour Sche

teps	

ered a wid
ss and deb
r is not a fin
on of these
ons posed.

define and 
evident ac
e availabilit
more hidde

he views of
next steps

ill focus on
ccompanie
and monit

ng services

living in is
isk of trans
mes”? 

e range of
bt and the r
nal docum
e topics an
.  

it is clear t
cross the C
ty of inform
n aspects 

f Elected M
s of the rev
n both solut
ed by an ac
tored. 

s be promo

solated com
sport pove

f subjects i
relationship
ent but ha

nd some of

that some a
Country, wh
mation and 

of poverty

Members, K
view and a 
tions and p
ction plan 

oted and m

mmunities 
erty throug

ncluding c
p between 
s been pro
the issues

aspects of 
hilst others 

increased
in Rutland

Key Partne
series of 

prevention
to enable t

ade more 

be encour
h “Good 

child povert
 health and

oduced in o
s raised th

f poverty th
s are uniqu
d discussio
d.   

ers and me

.  These 
the outcom

raged to 

 

 

ty, fuel 
d 
order to 
rough 

hat 
e to 
n will 

embers 

mes of 



Feedback from Poverty in Rutland Workshop 

What do we want to achieve? 

 Strategic Policy – broken down to reflect the key issues then the key issues in 
more detail 

 A statement that identifies the causes of poverty, what prevents people 
escaping poverty and where in the County – needs to be articulated 

 An action plan to support delivery of the policy 
 An active document, kept under review to reflect changing circumstances 
 Not necessarily a definition of Poverty in Rutland but more a list of the key 

determinants, focussed on impact not thresholds, required interventions and 
issues including: 
Isolation 
Free school Meals 
Stigma 
Housing 
Financial awareness / Education/Poverty Prevention 
Health inequalities 
Employment / Worklessness 
Access to services – transport, broadband etc 
Cost of childcare 
 

 A catalyst for a lobbying statement for Central Government 
 A key focus on relative poverty 
 An understanding of  income, disposable income, relative income and 

living/expectations 
 MTFP shouldn’t adversely affect strategy 
 Targeting resources and services to those who need it most 

 

Define poverty in Rutland 

 Definition given too high level 
 A focus on rural definition, focusing on categories of people in Rutland 
 Fine balance – something small can destabilise – crisis makes it more difficult 

to get help, particularly those that least expect to be in that situation. 
 A lot of people in Rutland just above the level 
 Two tier village life in some communities – social hierarchy 
 Smaller villages – those sustaining the community spirit getting older 
 Each village could become a strong community – younger people involved in 

fundraising and social events 
 Lack of choice  / Options 
 Cost – higher than elsewhere 



 Rutland is seen as affluent, poverty in Rutland is in stark contrast 
 Living in an expensive area is stressful for people without means 
 Lack of financial literacy, need to know how to budget 
 Should the council support the living wages as employers and is there a role 

for the council to encourage other employers to pay a living wage, which 
would also benefit the local economy 

 Pride- people don’t want to ask for help 
 Access – people in rural locations can’t always access the help they need 
 Mental health problems – stress of living in poverty 
 People can spiral down, self-fulfilling 
 Isolation 

 Childcare – Hours of Work – Variation - cost 
 Opportunity to earn – young families in a cycle to earn to sustain living 
 How can we move these people into a situation where they are empowered to 

better themselves 
 Transport – Job interviews, Healthcare, restrictions 
 Housing – Availability of stock, cost of purchase/rent, availability of rental 
 Stigma – applying for help, keep up appearances in a wealthy area 
 Benefits – changes to tax credits 
 Family breakdown 
 In Rutland you have to have a car in order to have a job 
 Basic level of need to function in Rutland society? 
 Advice and Education 
 Unexpected events, mental health issues, health issues can lead to 

challenges 
 Aspiration – comes before opportunities to improve place 
 Do we have pockets where people do not have aspirations 
 Changing Lives Programme 
 Confidence – those doing less well in exams – not got immediate support 

 
 

  



Areas to take forward for individual panels 

Panel Subject Areas 
Resources Review the crisis fund – what this is 

being used for and who it is helping 
Financial awareness – use money more 
effectively 
Affordable housing – is it really 
affordable? 

Places Domestic violence – family 
breakdown/lack of structure 
Using capital budget 
Intervention in the housing market 
Transport – support independent 
transport providers; taxis very expensive 
in Rutland 
Transport survey 
 

People (CYP) Accessibility of childcare 
Indicators below the threshold – early 
indicators – preventions 
Important to acknowledge inter-
connectivity of Poverty 
Accessibility of childcare – cost, quality, 
availability 
Perceptions of poverty (from expert 
witnesses) and how easy it is to refer any 
concerns or sign-post to support 
Early indicators for below thresholds of 
children in care – prevention 
 

People (Adults & Health) Health inequalities 
Undiagnosed mental health conditions 
Access to advice and support services 
Ageing 
Disabilities 
Frail/old 
Ageing population, exploring real issues, 
health inequalities, social isolation, cost 
of care 
Access to services, dental 
Health inequalities 
GP/CCS, Public Health, Mental Health 
Access to info/advice and services, VCF 
e.g. community agents, CAB, churches 
Vulnerable adults 
 
 

 



 

Expert witnesses 

Panel Expert Witness, visit etc 
Resources Credit Union – and maybe an end user  

Food bank – arrange a visit 
Places Domestic Violence worker – expert 

witness 
Spire and Other Housing Providers 

People (CYP) Schools 
Teachers 
School nurses 
Barnardos 
Army welfare service 
Children’s Centre 
Child care providers/nurseries – take up 
of 15 hours or more 
Sally Hickman – access to childcare 
providers – questionnaire or interviews 
Scouts/Air Cadets 
Employers – Lands End, Rob Wills 
Another LA dealing with rural poverty 
Children – what is their voice about – 
poverty 
 

People (Adults & Health) CCG 
Public Health 
Providers 
Voluntary Organisations 
Mental Health 
CAB 
Community Agents 
 

 



 

 

Sup
Statist

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

pporti
tical evide

ng Ev
ence used 

videnc
to inform

ce - P
m the Scrut

Povert
tiny review

ty in R
w of pover

Rutlan
rty in Rutl

 

1 

 

nd 
land.  



 

Table
Introduc

Populat

Populat

Indices 

Income

Employ

Educati

Other D

Healt

Crime

Hous

Living

Public H

Income

Unemp

Council

Crisis F

Child P

Transpo

Fuel Po

Free Sc

House 

House A

Homele

Food B

Mosaic 

Case S

 

 

 

e of Cont
ction ............

tion Growth

tion Density

of Multiple 

e Deprivatio

yment Depri

ion, Skills a

Deprivation .

th and Disa

e ..................

sing ..............

g Environm

Health .........

e and Emplo

loyment ......

l Tax/Housi

Fund ............

overty .........

ort Poverty .

overty ..........

chool Meals

Prices .........

Affordability

essness ......

anks ...........

....................

Studies .........

ents 
....................

h ...................

y ..................

Deprivation

n .................

ivation ........

and Training

....................

bility ...........

....................

....................

ent: ............

....................

oyment .......

....................

ng Benefit .

....................

....................

....................

....................

s ..................

....................

y ..................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

n ..................

....................

....................

g Deprivatio

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

on .................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

 

2 

............ 3 

............ 4 

............ 5 

............ 6 

............ 7 

............ 8 

............ 9 

.......... 10 

.......... 10 

.......... 11 

.......... 12 

.......... 13 

.......... 14 

.......... 17 

.......... 18 

.......... 19 

.......... 22 

.......... 27 

.......... 28 

.......... 29 

.......... 31 

.......... 32 

.......... 34 

.......... 35 

.......... 36 

.......... 37 

.......... 41 



 

Introd
 

This doc

for the P

Also incl

since the

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

duction 

cument conta

Poverty in Ru

luded, where

e original pre

ains the orig

utland scruti

e applicable 

esentation. 

ginal support

ny project. 

is any suppo

ting evidence

orting data in

e supplied as

ncluded in th

s part of the 

he 8 scrutiny 

initial presen

 panel meet

 

3 

ntation 

ings held 



 

Popu
 

The mid

populati

Nationa

 

Area 

Rutland 

East Mid

England

 

This can

populou

 

Bra

Cot

Exto

Gre

Ket

Lan

Lyd

Ma

Nor

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Ryh

Upp

Wh

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
1 ONS Mi

lation Gr

 2016 popul

ion in Rutlan

l average1. 

dlands 

 

 also be brok

us wards in R

unston and 

ttesmore 

on 

eetham 

ton 

ngham 

dington 

rtinsthorpe 

rmanton 

kham NE 

kham NW 

kham SE 

kham SW 

hall and Caste

pingham 

issendine 

                      
id‐Year Popula

rowth 

ation estima

nd has increa

Popula

34,600

4,189,

49,499

ken down by

Rutland, with

Belton 

erton 

                      
ation Estimate

ate shows the

ased by 9.8%

ation in 2001

0 

600 

9,700 

y ward, show

h Martinstho

All ag

1,32

2,43

1,33

1,95

2,87

1,43

1,33

1,06

3,56

3,08

4,10

2,49

2,25

2,85

4,70

1,23

 
es for High Le

ere are 38,0

%. This is sligh

1  Popu

38,0

4,67

54,7

wing Uppingh

rpe the least

ges  0

21 

38  4

39 

54 

72 

33 

31 

68 

64 

88 

00 

99 

51 

52  4

01  1

35 

evel Areas. 

00 residents

htly lower th

ulation in 20

00 

7,000 

86,000 

ham and Oak

t populous. 

0‐15 

210 

404 

152 

171 

521 

244 

180 

104 

568 

625 

852 

378 

386 

494 

1,029 

181 

 living in Rut

an both the 

15  Pe

9.8

11

10

kham NW are

16‐64 

792 

1,514 

792 

1,454 

1,535 

758 

789 

615 

2,294 

1,903 

2,448 

1,275 

1,229 

1,668 

2,678 

702 

tland. Since 2

East Midlan

rcentage inc

8% 

.6% 

.7% 

e the two m

65+ 

319 

520 

395 

329 

816 

431 

362 

349 

702 

560 

800 

846 

636 

690 

994 

352 

 

4 

2001 the 

ds and 

crease 

ost 



 

Popu
 

Rutland 

average 

Recently

across R

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
2 ONS Co
http://ww
3 ONS Po

lation De

has very low

 of 4132. 

y published d

Rutland are v

 
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru

                      
ompendium of
ww.neighbou
opulation Dens

ensity 

w population

data3 allows 

very sparsely

utland 001A 
utland 001B 
utland 001C 
utland 001D 
utland 002A 
utland 002B 
utland 002C 
utland 002D 
utland 003A 
utland 003B 
utland 003C 
utland 003D 
utland 004A 
utland 004B 
utland 004C 
utland 004D 
utland 004E 
utland 005A 
utland 005B 
utland 005C 
utland 005D 
utland 005E 
utland 005F 

                      
f UK Statistics
rhood.statisti
sity at Lower 

n density, at 9

us to break t

 populated.

Cottes
Exton
Greeth
Norma
Langh
Oakha
Oakha
Whiss
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha
Ketton
Ketton
Norma
Ryhal
Ryhal
Braun
Lyddin
Martin
Uppin
Uppin
Uppin

 
2014, 
ics.gov.uk/HT
Layer Super O

98 people pe

this down by

Ward 
smore 

ham 
anton 
ham 
am NW 
am NW 
sendine 
am NE 
am NE 
am SE 
am SQ 
n 
n 
anton 
l and Caster
l and Caster

nston and Be
ngton 
nsthorpe 
gham 
gham 
gham 

TMLDocs/dvc1
Output Area, 2

er square kilo

y ward, show

Peo

rton 
rton 
lton 

134_c/index.h
2016. 

ometre, com

wing that som

ple per Sq. K

1
5
5

1,9
2,9
1,4

9
1

1
1

4
9
8

tml  

mpared to a n

me commun

Km 
91 
27 
46 
75 
21 

507 
545 

76 
960 
918 
428 
961 

16 
80 
05 
30 
54 
29 
38 
45 

428 
907 
837 

 

5 

national 

ities 



 

Indice
 

The Ind
in terms
an over
Lower S

The IMD
depriva
from 1 (

The dat

Rutland
Rutland
hidden 
targetin
specific
next few

 

 

               
4 ONS En

es of Mu

dices of Mul
s of relative
rall measure
Super Outp

D ranks are
ation deciles
(most depri

ta is publish

d is one of t
d ranked 14
even when

ng individua
c types of de
w pages. 

                      
glish Indices o

ltiple De

tiple Depriv
e deprivation
e called the
ut Areas (L

eas in Engla
s are publish
ved) to 10 (

hed every 2

he most aff
484. Howeve
 using IMD 
ls. The indiv
eprivation a

                      
of Deprivation

eprivation

vation (IMD)
n using seve
e Index of M
SOA’s) of w

and from 1 (
hed alongsi
(least depriv

-3 years an

fluent count
er in many c
and the ind
vidual doma

affecting ind

 
n 2015 

n 

) is a nation
en domains

Multiple Dep
which there 

(most depriv
ide ranks, g
ved). 

nd was last 

ties in Engla
cases pocke
dex is theref
ains of the 

dividual area

nal dataset t
s; the meas
rivation. Th
are 32,844

ved) to 32,8
grouping the

published in

and; of 152 
ets of depriv
fore not a s
Indices do g
as of Rutlan

that ranks a
ures are the
e areas use
 in England

844 (least d
e small area

n 2015. 

Upper Tier 
vation and n

suitable tool 
give a good
nd as can be

areas in the
en combine
ed are know
d.  

deprived), 
as into 10 g

r Local Auth
need can b
 for identify

d indication 
e seen ove

 

6 

e country 
ed into 
wn as 

roups 

horities, 
e 

ying and 
of the 
r the 

 



 

Incom
 

This do
income 

Adults a
 

 
 
 
 
 

Income
 

•

•

 

 

me Depriv

omain meas
 and combi

and Childre

Income Sup

Jobseekers

Employmen

Pension Cre

Child Tax C
 
 
e Deprivatio

• Deprivat
highest 
(Upping
 

• Deprivat
with 16.

vation 

sures the pro
nes the follo

n in familie

pport 

 Allowance 

nt Support A

edits 

redit and W

on can also b

tion affectin
levels of ch
gham) with 

tion affectin
.1% and Rut

oportion of 
owing indic

s receiving 

Allowance

Working Tax

be split furt

ng children 
ildren affec
15.9% affec

ng adults (6
tland 002C 

the populat
cators: 

 

x credit fam

ther for two

(0‐15), whi
cted by Inco
cted and Ru

60+), which 
(Oakham N

tion experie

ilies not alre

o specific ag

ich shows th
ome Depriva
utland 002D

shows that
NW) with 14

encing depri

eady counte

ge groups: 

hat areas in
ation are Ru
 (Whissend

t Rutland 00
4.6% have th

ivation due 

ed 

n Rutland w
utland 005E
dine) with 1

03B (Oakha
he highest l

 

7 

 

to low 

ith 
E 
5.3% 

m NE) 
evels  



 

Emplo
 

Employ
involunt
but are 

It includ

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

oyment D

yment depriv
tarily exclud
unable to d

des claiman

Jobseekers
Employmen
Incapacity 
Severe Dis
Carers Allo

Deprivat

vation meas
ded from the
do so due to

nts aged 18-

s allowance
nt and Supp
Benefit 

sablement A
owance 

tion 

sures the p
e labour ma
o unemploy

-59/64 of th

e 
port Allowan

Allowance 

roportion of
arket. This i
yment, sickn

he following

nce 

f the workin
includes pe
ness or disa

: 

ng age popu
ople who w

ability. 

ulation in an
would like to

 

8 

 

n area 
 work 



 

Educa
 

This do
areas o

For chil

 
 
 
 

For adu

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ation, Sk

omain meas
of Rutland s

dren the ind

Key stage 2
Secondary 
Staying on 
Entry to hig

ults it looks 

Adults with 
English lan

kills and 

sures the lac
tand out in 

dicators use

2 and 4 atta
School abs
in educatio

gher educat

at: 

 no or low q
guage prof

Training

ck of attainm
this domain

ed to measu

ainment 
sence 
on post 16 
tion 

qualification
iciency 

g Depriva

ment and sk
n, Greetham

ure this are

ns 

ation 

kills in the lo
m and Oakh

: 

ocal popula
ham NW. 

ation. Two s

 

9 

specific 

 



 

Other
 

Health

This do
through

 
 

 
 

r Depriva

h and Dis

omain meas
h poor phys

Years of po
Comparativ
to work thro
Acute morb
Mood and a
respect inc

ation  

sability 

sures the ris
ical or ment

otential life l
ve illness an
ough ill hea
bidity measu
anxiety diso
ludes mood

sk of premat
tal health a

lost, death b
nd disability
lth 
ured by taki
orders, a bro
d, neuroses

ture death a
nd includes

before the a
y, based on 

ing the leve
oad measu

s, stress rela

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

and the imp
s: 

age of 75 fr
those rece

el of emerge
re of levels 
ated and so

pairment of 

om any cau
iving benefi

ency admiss
of mental h

omatoform d

quality of lif

use 
fits due to in

sions to hos
health which
disorders 

 

10 

 

fe 

nability 

spital 
h in this 



 

Crime
 

Measur

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

e 

res recordedd crime ratees for violennce, burglarry, theft andd criminal daamage 

 

11 

 



 

Housi
 

This do
Rutland
the isola
also the

The me

Geogra

 

Wider B

 

 

 

 

ng 

omain meas
d, like many
ation of som
e generally 

easures use

aphical Barr

Road dista
surgery 

Barriers: 

Household 
have insuff
Homelessn
assistance 
Housing Af
market, exp
rental mark

sures the ph
y rural areas
me commun
high cost of

ed for this do

riers: 

nce to a po

overcrowd
ficient space
ness – Loca

under the h
ffordability –
pressed as 
ket 

hysical and 
s, comes ou
nities within 
f housing (b

omain are:

st office, pr

ing – The p
e to meet th

al Authority d
homelessne
– Difficulty o
the inability

financial ac
ut quite poo
 the county

both rental a

rimary scho

proportion of
he househo
district leve
ess provisio
of access to
y to afford to

ccessibility o
orly for this d
y and the dis
and to buy) 

ol, general 

f all househ
ld’s needs

el rate of acc
ons of the 19
o owner-occ
o enter own

of housing a
domain, in m
stance to m
in Rutland.

store/super

holds which 

ceptances f
996 Housin
cupation or t
ner occupati

and local se
many cases

many amenit
. 

rmarket and

are judged

for housing 
ng Act 
the private 
ion or the p

 

12 

 

ervices. 
s due to 
ties and 

d GP 

d to 

rental 
private 



 

 

Living

This me

Indoors

 

 

Outdoo

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

g Environ

easures the

s Living Env

Houses wit
heating 
Housing in 
the Decent 

ors Living En

Air Quality:
Road traffic

nment: 

e quality of t

vironment: 

thout centra

poor condit
 Homes Sta

nvironment:

 A measure
c accidents 

the environm

al heating: th

tion: the pro
andard 

: 

e of air qual
involving in

ment, and f

he proportio

oportion of s

lity based o
njury to ped

falls into two

on of house

social and p

n emissions
estrians an

o sub doma

es that do no

private hom

s rates for 4
d cyclists 

ains. 

ot have cen

mes that fail 

4 pollutants 

 

13 

 

ntral 

to meet 



 

Public
 

The link
arise be
These d
experie

 

 

Accordi
Rutland

 

Each ye
and yea

               
5 Active P
6 2014‐15
7 Oral He
8 Oral He

c Health 

ks between 
ecause of in
differences 

encing poore

67.3% of ad
higher than
 
6.75% of R
higher than
higher prev
However th
Rutland on 

ing to oral h
d: 

40.3% of fiv
dropped to 

ear the Nati
ar 6. We ha

                      
People Survey
5 Quality and 
ealth Survey o
ealth Survey o

poverty an
nequalities i
have a high

er health an

dults in Rut
n the nationa

Rutland popu
n the Englan
valence and
here is evide
 the next fe

health surve

ve year old 
28.8% in 2

ional Child 
ave looked a

                      
y 2016 – samp
Outcomes Fra
f five year old
f five year old

d poor heal
in the condi
h impact, be
nd shorter li

tland are es
al average 

ulation 17+ 
nd average 
d it may be t
ence that th
w years: 

eys for 3 to 

children sa
0158 but is 

Measureme
at this data 

 
ple 1372 peop
amework Dat
d children 201
d children 201

lth are well 
itions of dai
ecause they
ves. 

stimated to h
(64.8%)5. 

are diagno
of 6.4%. It 

the result of
he rate of di

5 year olds

ampled had 
still well ab

ent Program
over severa

ple 
ta 
3 PHE 
5 PHE 

accepted. S
ily life and p
y result in th

have exces

osed with dia
is unclear a
f better diag
iabetes is se

 there are h

decayed m
bove nationa

mme measu
al years and

Social inequ
poverty is a 
he people w

s weight (2

abetes. Aga
as to the ex
gnosis by lo
et to rise to 

high levels o

missing or fil
al levels 

ures children
d compared

ualities in he
key aspect

who are wor

016), signif

ain significa
xact reason 
ocal GP’s6. 
o over 10% 

of tooth dec

led teeth7. T

n in receptio
d it to data o

 

14 

ealth 
t of this. 
rst off 

ficantly 

antly 
for this 

in 

 

cay in 

This 

on class 
on tooth 



 

decay a
decay a

Percent

 

 
               
9 Nationa

and families
and excess 

tage of yea

                      
al Child Measu

s in poverty.
weight in y

r 6 children

                      
urement Prog

. This has s
ear 6 and c

 with exces

 
ramme, Healt

shown some
children in fa

ss weight 20

th and Social C

e correlation
amilies in p

012/13-2014

Care Informat

n between a
overty: 

4/159: 

tion Centre 

areas of hig
 

15 

gh tooth 

 

 



 

Smokin
kills 80,
likely to
twice as
smoke, 

Nationa
their dis
increas

 

ng shows on
,000 people

o smoke as 
s likely to sm
 rising to 29

al data show
sposal incom
es the num

ne of the cle
e in England
those in ma
moke as tho
9.6% for ‘Ro

ws that 3 ou
me on cigar
ber of hous

earest links 
d each year
anagerial an
ose in empl
outine and M

ut of 4 famili
rettes. The 
seholds in p

between po
r. Workers i
nd professio
loyment. On
Manual’ wo

ies who rec
chart below

poverty: 

overty/low i
n manual a
onal roles a
n average in
rkers: 

ceive income
w shows how

ncome and
nd routine j

and unemplo
n Rutland 1

e support s
w the cost o

d poor healt
jobs are twi
oyed people
4.1% of ad

spend a sev
of smoking 

 

16 

h and 
ce as 
e are 
ults 

 

venth of 

 



 

Incom
 

As at th
in Rutla
has bee
has now
looks at
past ‘re

Gross w
(£541.0
compar

 
Full Tim
Male FT
Female
 

Full tim
same p

 

The Lab
56.7% o
profess

 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

# Sample

 

 

 

               
10 ONS La
11 ONS La

me and E

he end of Se
and compar
en declining
w started to
t those who

etirement’ ag

weekly pay 
00) average
red to nation

me Workers
T Workers 

e FT Worker

e wages in 
period avera

bour Marke
of those em

sionals) com

Managers, 
Professiona
Associate P
Administrat
Skilled Trad
Caring, Lei
Sales and C
Process Pla
Elementary

e size too sma

                      
abour Market 
abour Market 

Employm

eptember 2
red to 74.3%
g over the la
o increase a
o are workin
ge10. 

in Rutland 
es11. There i
nally, which

Rutlan
 

rs 

Rutland ha
age pay is 1

et Statistics 
mployed in R
mpared to 40

Directors a
al Occupati
Professiona
tive and Se
des Occupa
sure and ot
Customer S
ant and Ma
y Occupatio
all for reliable e

                      
Statistics, Em
Statistics, Ear

ment  

016, 76.4%
% in the Eas
ast few quar
gain. This m

ng age (16-6

is £490.90, 
s also a wid

h may accou

nd(pounds)
£490.90 
£576.00 
£440.10 

ave increase
8.6% highe

also split do
Rutland are 
0.9% in the 

and Senior O
ons 

al and Techn
cretarial 
ations 
ther Service
Services 
chine Oper

ons 
estimate 

 
mployment and
rnings by plac

% of the wor
st Midlands 
rters to a lo
may be bec
64) so does

lower than 
der gap bet
unt for why 

 East

ed by 15.4%
er in the Eas

own employ
in the first t
 East Midla

Officials 

nical 

e Occupatio

ratives 

d Unemploym
ce of residence

king age po
as a whole

ow of 74.6%
cause the E
sn’t include 

both region
tween male 
gross week

t Midlands
£501.70
£549.10
£433.10

% since 200
st Midlands

yment by oc
three group

ands and 45

R

ons 

ment (Oct 201
e 2016 

opulation we
e. Rutland’s 

% at the end 
mployment 
those who 

nal (£501.70
and female

kly pay as a

Gr

06 (from £42
s and 21.3%

ccupation ty
ps (Manager
5.1% nationa

Rutland 
19.5% 
19.2% 
18% 
8.1% 
8% 

6.9% 
# 
# 

12.1% 

5‐Sept 2016) 

ere in emplo
 employme
of June 20
Rate figure
are still wor

0) and natio
e pay in Rut
a whole is lo

reat Britain 
£541.0
£581.2
£481.1

25.40). Ove
% higher nat

ype, showin
rs and 
ally. 

East Mid
10.
17.
13.
10.
11.
9.4
7.2
8.6

12.

 

17 

oyment 
nt figure 
16 but 

e only 
rking 

onal 
tland 
ower: 

00 
20 

0 

er the 
tionally. 

ng that 

dlands 
1% 
3% 
4% 
2% 
4% 

4% 
2% 
6% 
2% 



 

Unem
 

As at A
a nation

This, in 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
12 ONS La

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

U
n
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
C
la
im

an
t 
R
at
e
 (
%
)

mploymen

August 2016
nal average

 real terms,

                      
abour Market 

0

2

4

6

8

0

2

4

6

A
u
g‐
1
0

D
ec
‐1
0

A
p
r‐
1
1

nt 

6 5.6% of the
e of 11.3% (

, accounts f

                      
Statistics, Ma

A
u
g‐
1
1

D
ec
‐1
1

A
p
r‐
1
2

A
u
g‐
1
2

Un

e working a
(and 11% in

for 1,250 pe

 
ain Benefit Cla

A
u
g
1
2

D
ec
‐1
2

A
p
r‐
1
3

A
u
g‐
1
3

Month ‐ Y

nemploym

age client gr
n the East M

eople in Rut

aimants  

D
ec
‐1
3

A
p
r‐
1
4

A
u
g‐
1
4

D
ec
‐1
4

Year

ment Claim

roup were c
Midlands)12.

tland a redu

D
ec
‐1
4

A
p
r‐
1
5

A
u
g‐
1
5

D
ec
‐1
5

mant Rate

claiming ben

uction from 

A
p
r‐
1
6

A
u
g‐
1
6

nefits, comp

1,490 in Au

Rutland

East Midlan

Great Britai

 

18 

pared to 

ug 2011. 

 

nds

n



 

Coun
 

Difficult
in Rutla

Average
below13

Rutland
Notting
Leiceste
Notting
Derby 
Derbysh
Lincolns
Leiceste
Northam
 

The tabl

               
13 Officia

cil Tax/H

ties in low p
and, includin

e Council T
3. 

d 
ham 
er 
hamshire 

hire 
shire 
ershire 
mptonshire 

les below sho

                      
l Statistics – C

Housing 

pay and/or r
ng Council T

Tax (band D

ow the num

                      
Council Tax lev

Benefit

eliance on b
Tax which i

D) for the au

bers claiming

 
vels set by loc

benefits are
s amongst 

uthority and 

£1,5
£1,5
£1,3
£1,2
£1,2
£1,1
£1,1
£1,1
£1,1

g Council Ta

cal authorities

e exacerbat
the highest

neighbourin

528 
517 
354 
291 
236 
165 
129 
127 
111 

x and Housin

s in England 20

ted by high 
in the coun

ng authoritie

ng Benefit Su

016‐17(revise

unavoidabl
ntry. 

es is shown

upport in 201

ed) 

 

19 

e costs 

n 

15/16: 

 



 

 

 

20 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

21 

 

 



 

Crisis
 

Crisis s
unless 

Crisis s
membe
not met

Anyone
(Income
Allowan

The tab
success

Numbe

Year 

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
 

Successf

Ward 

Braunsto

Cottesm

Exton 

Greetha

Ketton 

Langham

Lyddingt

Martinst

Norman

Oakham

Oakham

Oakham

Oakham

Ryhall an

Uppingh

Whissen

Homeles
Rutland)

Total 

s Fund 

support is in
provided wo

support can 
er of their ho
t.  

e can apply 
e Support, J
nce and Un

bles below p
sful and wh

er of applic

5 
6 
7 (upto Nov

ful Applicant

on and Belto

more 

am 

m 

ton 

thorpe 

nton 

m NE 

m NW 

m SE 

m SW 

nd Casterton

ham 

ndine 

ss (connectio
) 

tended to p
ould severe

also provid
ousehold wo

for support
Job Seeker
iversal Cred

provide som
ere the clai

cations rece

Applic

324 
205 

v) 109 

ts and the W

on 

n 

on to 

provide finan
ely disadvan

de emergen
ould suffer s

but the pol
rs Allowance
dit) may be 

me detail of 
mants are l

eived and t

cations rece

Ward area tha

Application
awarded 1

3 

3 

0 

2 

3 

5 

1 

0 

4 

23 

33 

7 

8 

2 

26 

2 

20 

142 

ncial suppo
ntage the ap

cy financial
severe disa

licy does hig
e, Pension 
more likely

how many 
located (the

the decisio

eived App

207
142
94 

at the applica

ns 
5/16 

%

2.1

2.1

0

1.4

2.1

3.5

0.7

0

2.8

16

23

4.9

5.6

1.4

18

1.4

14

10

ort to meet o
pplicant or a

l support wh
advantage if

ghlight that 
Credit, Emp

y to apply du

claims we r
e ward): 

on made: 

lications aw

ant resides in

Ap
16

1%  0

1%  0

1

4%  2

1%  1

5%  4

7%  0

1

8%  2

.3%  18

.3%  34

9%  0

6%  7

4%  3

.3%  16

4%  0

.1%  5

0%  94

or help to m
a member o

here the ap
f their imme

people on c
ployment an
ue to their li

receive, how

warded Ap
or 
11
63
15

n: 

pplications aw
/17 (to Nov)

meet a need 
of their hous

plicant or a
ediate need

certain ben
nd Support 
imited incom

w many are

pplications r
referred 
7 

3 
5 

warded 
) 

% 

0 

0 

1.1

2.1

1.1

4.3

0 

1.1

2.1

19

36

0 

7.4

3.2

17

0 

5.3

10

 

22 

that 
sehold. 

s are 

efits 

me. 

 

refused 

1% 

1% 

1% 

3% 

1% 

1% 

9.1% 

6.2% 

4% 

2% 

7% 

3% 

00% 



 

The follo

people a

 

Crisis Su

In the tw

No. of 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

The reas

problem

Income

 

ESA 

Jobsee

Matern

Undisc

Univers

Mainte

Tax Cre

Wages 

owing table d

are awarded

Item 

Beddin

Clothin

Cooke

Food –

Food –

Food –

Fridge

Fuel fo

Fuel fo

Furnit

Public 

Movin

Toiletr

Washi

Other 

Total 

upport Appli

welve month

Applications

sons given fo

ms, income sp

e Receipt Pro

kers Allowan

nity Allowanc

losed benefi

sal Credit 

enance 

edits 

details the ty

 multiple ite

ng 

ng 

er 

– supermark

– food bank v

– food parce

 

or cooking/h

or vehicle 

ure package 

Transport 

ng expenses 

ries 

ng Machine 

living expen

cations in th

hs there were

s made 

or making th

pent, househ

oblems 

D

1

nce  4

ce  1

its  2

3

 

1

6

ype of item a

ms e.g. a foo

et voucher 

voucher 

l (supplied to

eating 

(Melton Fur

ses 

he twelve mo

e 210 applica

No.

75

20

7 

5 

3 

3 

3 

e application

hold problem

Delays 

1 

4 

1 

21 

3 

1 

6 

awarded in 2

od bank vouc

o RCC) 

rniture proje

onths – 01/1

ations made

. of Individu

ns were as fo

ms, personal 

Reduced 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

1 

 

2016/17 (upt

cher and fue

Nu

1 

2 

1 

4 

41

21

1 

21

1 

ect)  5 

4 

3 

1 

1 

14

12

11/2015 to 3

from 116 in

als 

ollows, separ

issues, and o

Stopped

 

 

 

13 

 

1 

5 

23 

to November

el for cooking

umber award

1 

31/10/2016 

dividuals.  

rated into inc

others: 

d  Interm

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

r). In some c

g/heating: 

ded 

come receip

mit  Tot

1 

4 

1 

44 

3 

1 

7 

30 

 

23 

cases 

pt 

al 



 

Not dis

Cannot

 

 

Income

 

Bailiffs 

Bank C

Counci

Court F

Hospita

Victim 

Water 

Other/

 

 

Househ

 

Boiler b

Cooker

Electric

Fire 

Fridge 

Gas can

Lost ke

Newly 

Washin

Other h

 

Person

 

Cannot

Fleeing

Health 

No foo

Relatio

 

 

Other A

 

Loans m

sclosed 

t manage/bu

e Spent 

harges 

l Tax 

Fine 

al visit costs 

of crime 

bill 

/undisclosed 

hold Problem

breakdown 

r 

city 

nister  

ey 

housed 

ng Machine 

household it

nal Issues 

t work 

g domestic vi

problems 

d 

onship breakd

Application R

made to a Cou

 

udget   

 

ms 

Bre

1 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 

tem  2 

iolence 

down 

Reasons 

urt of Protec

eakdown 

ction client 

 

 

 

 

Needed

 

1 

1 

 

 

2 

 

20 

 

 

 

 

2 

12 

105

Tota

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

3 

1 

5 

14 

Tota

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

2 

1 

20 

1 

2 

31 

Tota

1 

6 

4 

3 

4 

18 

Tota

6 

 

24 

5 

al 

al 

al 

al 



 

Moving 

Social Se

Toiletrie

Travel co

No reaso

 

 

Househo

  

Househo

Age not 

Single w

Single Pa

Couple w

Couple w

Single &

Couple &

 

Gender 

Female 

Male 

 

Age Ran

Undisclo

Aged 18

Aged 20

Aged 30

Aged 40

Aged 50

Aged 60

 

Children

Single 

Couple 

 

 

home 

ervices suppo

es needed  

osts 

on given for 

old make‐up

old 

disclosed 

with no childr

arent & Wor

with no child

with children

& Pension Age

& Pension Ag

of Applicant

nge 

osed 

8 to 19 

0 to 29 

0 to 39 

0 to 49 

0 to 59 

0 or more 

n:  0 

178

5 

183

orted – negl

the applicat

p informatio

ren & Workin

rking Age 

dren & Work

n & Working 

e 

ge 

t 

8 

3 

ect 

ion 

n in the twe

ng Age 

ing Age 

Age 

1 

6 

6 

12 

elve months 

Num

11 

146

15 

4 

12 

21 

1 

Num

90 

120

Num

11 

16 

53 

55 

29 

24 

22 

2 

4 

2 

6 

– 01/11/201

mbers 

mbers 

mbers 

15 to 31/10/

3 

5 

2 

7 

13 

1 

1 

6 

15 

42 

/2016 

4 

0 

2 

2 

 

25 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26 

 



 

Child 
 

Child P
increas
wards, 
where h

 

 

Poverty

overty in Ru
e of 70 child
Langham w
has been a 

y 

utland is cu
dren from 4

where there 
6.3% increa

Braunston 
Cottes

Ex
Gree

Ket
Lang

Lyddi
Martins

Norm
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha

Ryhall and
Uppin

Whiss

rrently at 8.
435 to 505).

has been a
ase and Lyd

 

and Belton
smore 

xton 
etham 
tton 
gham 
ington 
sthorpe 

manton 
am NE 
am NW 
am SE 
am SW 
d Casterton
ngham 
endine 

.5%, a 1.3%
 Most of thi

a 6.5% incre
ddington wh

% of ch
in low in

fami
n 4.3

3.2
7.6

12.8
5.8

10.8
6.7
5.4
5.1
9.5

14.8
5.4
10%
8%

12.5
14.4

% increase o
is increase 
ease on the
here there h

hildren 
ncome 
lies 

C
la

% 
% 
% 

8% 
% 

8% 
% 
% 
% 
% 

8% 
% 
% 

% 
5% 
4% 

on previous
is concentra

e previous y
has been a 

hange from
ast reported

data 
0.7% 
-0.4% 

3% 
6.3% 
-0.7% 
6.5% 
3.9% 
-3% 
1.6% 
1.7% 
-0.2% 
0.9% 
1.6% 
1.6% 
1.4% 
1.1% 

s data (an a
rated in thre
year, Greeth

3.9% incre

m 
d 

 

27 

ctual 
ee 
ham 
ease: 

 



 

Trans
 

Transpo
practitio
most fre
househ
individu
work, le

In Rutla
van – th
use ten
distance
burden 
to 10.7%

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
14 Car ow
15 Gov.UK

sport Pov

ort poverty 
oners have 
equently as
olds that ow

uals in hous
eaving othe

and there ar
his is relativ
ds to be hig
es travelled
on rural ho

% in urban 

                      
wnership rates
K transport co

verty 

is a difficult
been strugg

ssociated wi
wn a car bu
seholds who
r residents 

re 603 cars 
vely high co
gher in rura
d to access 
ouseholds w
areas15 

                      
s by Local Auth
osts analysis, 2

t concept to
gling to ade
ith those wi
t cannot aff

o only have 
without acc

and vans p
mpared to t
l areas whe
them. Expe

who spend 1

 
hority in Engla
2015 

o describe a
equately def
thout acces
ford to use 
one car tha

cess to priva

per 1000, an
the UK ave
ere services
enditure on 
12.5% of Ho

and and Wale

and one that
fine or mea
ss to a car, 
it for some 
at is used to
ate transpor

nd 87.6% o
rage14. Nev

s are more d
transport co

ousehold in

es (RAC Found

t both policy
sure for ma
but can also
or all journe

o transport a
rt some or a

f household
vertheless c
dispersed a
osts also pl
come on tra

ation), 2012 

y makers an
any years. It
o include 
eys; or to 
a family me
all of the tim

ds have a c
car ownersh
and longer 
ace more o
ansport com

 

28 

nd 
t is 

ember to 
me. 

ar or 
hip and 

of a 
mpared 



 

Fuel P
 

Fuel Po
Under t

The key
fuel pric

• 

• 
• 
• 

 
The tab

 
Rutland
East Mi
England

Recent 
majority

 
 

Poverty 

overty in En
this, a hous

• The
leve

• Wer
belo

y data sourc
ce data esti

There are 3

Household 
Household 
Fuel Prices

ble below sh

d 
idlands 
d 

data at wa
y above the

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

gland is me
ehold is con

ey have req
el) 

re they to s
ow the offic

ces used to
mated from

3 key eleme

Income 
Energy Re

s 

hows the pr

rd level sho
e national av

B
ra

u
ns

to
n

 a
nd

…
M

ar
tin

st
h

or
p

e
Ly

dd
in

gt
on

K
et

to
n

Prop

easured usi
nsidered to 

uired fuel co

pend that a
ial poverty l

o compile th
m quarterly e

ents in dete

quirements

roportion of 

20
13.
13.
11.

ows that fue
verage: 

G
re

et
ha

m
N

o
rm

an
to

n
E

xt
on

W
h

is
se

nd
in

e
U

p
pi

ng
ha

m

portion o

ng the Low
be fuel poo

osts that ar

amount, they
line 

his data are 
energy price

rmining wh

s 

fuel poor h

011 
.6% 
.3% 
.1% 

 

el poverty is

U
p

pi
ng

ha
m

O
ak

ha
m

 N
W

La
ng

h
am

C
o

tte
sm

or
e

N
a

tio
na

l A
ve

ra
ge

of fuel po

w Income Hig
or if: 

re above av

y would be 

the annual 
es and the O

ether a hou

ouseholds a

2012 
11.9% 
13.2% 
10.8% 

 an issue in

g
R

yh
a

ll 
an

d…
K

et
to

n
R

yh
a

ll 
an

d…
N

o
rm

an
to

n
E

tM
id

l
d

oor hous

gh Costs (L

erage (the n

left with a r

English Ho
ONS consu

usehold is fu

against the 

2013 
9.3% 

10.4% 
10.4% 

n a number 

E
as

t M
id

la
nd

s…
U

p
pi

ng
ha

m
O

ak
ha

m
 N

W
O

ak
ha

m
 S

W
U

p
pi

ng
ha

m

seholds

LIHC) Indica

national me

residual inco

ousing Surv
umer price in

uel poor: 

national de

2
10
10
10

of wards w

 

U
p

pi
ng

ha
m

O
ak

ha
m

 S
E

O
ak

ha
m

 N
E

 

29 

ator. 

edian 

ome 

ey and 
ndex. 

efinition: 

014 
0.6% 
0.1% 
0.6% 

ith a 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30 

 



 

Free S
 

Eligibilit

 

U

O

C

T

 

Claimin

 

As the t
of which

In comp
average

 

 

 

 

School M

ty: 

Uppingham 

Oakham Clu

Casterton Cl

Total numbe

ng: 

tables abov
h 272 (91%

parison, res
e for percen

Meals 

Cluster 

uster 

luster 

er eligible 

  

Rutland
Primarie

Rutland

Total el
claimin

ve show, the
%) are curren

search publi
ntage of pup

for Free Sc

d Nurseries 
es 

d Secondari

ligible and 
ng 

ere are 300 
ntly claiming

ished by the
pils entitled 

Tota
num
pup

149

2234

181

chool Meal

N
k
a

and 
1

es 1

2

 children el
g meals, an

e Departme
to free sch

al 
mber of 

ils 

%
fre
m

0 3.

4 7.

5 4.

ls  

Number of p
known to be
and claiming

141 

131 

272 

igible for Fr
nd 29 (9%) a

ent for Educ
ool meals a

% eligible for
ee school 

meals 

.80% 

.30% 

.40% 

pupils 
e eligible 
g 

ree School M
are not. 

cation in 201
and not claim

r Numbe
eligible 
for FSM

57 

163 

80 

300 

Meals in Ru

13 put the n
ming them 

 

31 

r 

M 

utland, 

national 
at 14% 



 

House
 

The Off
small ar
compris

 

Median

 
               
16 ONS Ho

Q
u
ar
te
rl
y 
H
o
u
se
 S
al
e
s 
C
o
st
 ‐

M
e
d
ia
n
 V
al
u
e

e Prices 

fice of Natio
reas. Data 
sed of 5 MS

 price paid 

                      
ouse price sta

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Q
4
‐1
9
9
5

onal Statisti
is released 

SOA’s as sh

by Middle S

                      
atistics for sm

Q
4
‐1
9
9
6

Q
4
‐1
9
9
7

Q
4
‐1
9
9
8

Q
4
‐1
9
9
9

cs have sta
down to the

hown below

Super Outpu

 
all areas in En

Q
4
‐2
0
0
0

Q
4
‐2
0
0
1

Q
4
‐2
0
0
2

Q
4
‐2
0
0
3

arting publis
e Middle Su

w16: 

ut Area: 

ngland and Wa

Q
4
‐2
0
0
4

Q
4
‐2
0
0
5

Q
4
‐2
0
0
6

Q
4
‐2
0
0
7

Q
4
2
0
0
8

shing data o
uper Output

ales: to year e

Q
4
‐2
0
0
8

Q
4
‐2
0
0
9

Q
4
‐2
0
1
0

Q
4
‐2
0
1
1

Q
4
2
0
1
2

on house pr
t area level.

ending March 

Q
4
‐2
0
1
2

Q
4
‐2
0
1
3

Q
4
‐2
0
1
4

Q
4
‐2
0
1
5

rice statistic
. Rutland is

 

 2016 

Rutland

Rutland

Rutland

Rutland

Rutland

Englan

East M

 

32 

s for 

 

d 001

d 002

d 003

d 004

d 005

d

idlands



 

House 
increas

Percent

 

Rutland 

Rutland 

Rutland 

Rutland 

Rutland 
 

The me
Midland

Average

 

Rutland 

East Mid

Differen
 

The cos
(£600 n

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

prices in Ru
ing by more

tage increa

Medi
year t

001 

002 

003 

004 

005 

edian house
ds. The tabl

e median h

Me
yea

  £68

dland  £45

nce  £22

st of renting
nationally an

utland have
e than the E

se in Media

an property v
to Q4 1995 

£76,500 

£54,750 

£58,500 

£70,000 

£83,000 

e price in Ru
e below sho

ouse price 

edian property
ar to Q4 1995 

8,550 

5,950 

2,600 

g is also hig
nd £525 in t

 risen signif
East Midland

an Price pai

value  Medi
year t

utland is now
ows how th

to East Mid

y  value  M
y

£

£

£

her in Rutla
the East Mid

ficantly sinc
ds average

id between 

ian property v
to Q1 2016 

£267,500

£219,873

£222,250

£275,000

£255,000

w £247,924
his has chan

dlands avera

Median prope
year to 2006

£203,594 

£132,000 

£71,594 

and (averag
dlands). 

ce 1996, wit
 (248.2%).

1995 and 2

value  % i
bet

4 compared
nged betwe

age 

erty value Q1 

ge £625pm)

th 4 of Rutla

2016 

ncrease in me
tween Q4 199

2

3

2

2

2

d to £160,00
en 1995 an

Median p
Q1 2016 

£247,924

£160,000

£87,924 

compared 

and’s 5 MS

edian house c
95 and Q1 201

249.67% 

301.59% 

279.91% 

292.86% 

207.23% 

00 in the Ea
nd 2016. 

property Value

4 

0 

to compara

 

33 

OA’s 

cost 
16 

ast 

e year to 

ators 



 

House
 

Apart fr
median
English

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
17 DCLG (

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

20

e Afforda

rom a ‘dip’ i
 earnings h
 average of

                      
(2016) Table 5

00020012002

R

ability 

n 2009, the
has steadily 
f 4.21) to a 

                      
577 Housing M

20032004200

Ratio of Me

e disparity b
increased f
ratio of 10.8

 
Market: ratio o

05200620072

edian Hou

etween the
from a ratio
82 in 20151

 

of median hou

20082009201

use Price t

 median ho
o of 5.8 in th

7.  

use price to m

10201120122

to Median 

use price in
he year 200

median earning

01320142015

Earnings

n Rutland a
0 (compare

gs by district 

5

s

Eng

Rut

 

34 

nd 
ed to an 

 

gland

tland



 

Home
 

Every y
and oth

In 2015

 
 
 
 
 

There w

The ma
Ward. 

 

 

 

elessnes

year, perhap
hers forced 

5/16 

there were 
34 househo
19 househo
eight were 
one househ

were 334 ho

ap below sh

ss 

ps 2,000 ho
by circumst

67 homeles
olds were a
olds who m
homeless b
hold was in 

ouseholds o

ows the ho

ouseholds in
tances. 

ssness prev
ccepted as 
ade homele
but not in pr
priority nee

on the hous

meless dec

n Rutland, w

ventions by
 unintention
essness ap
riority need;
ed but was 

ing register

clarations re

with some o

y the Housin
nally homele
plications w
; 
classed as 

r at 31st Mar

eceived by t

of these mov

ng Options t
ess and in p

were not cla

intentionally

rch 2016 

the Authorit

ves due to c

team; 
priority need
ss as home

y homeless

ty, broken d

 

35 

choice 

d; 
eless; 

s. 

down by 

 



 

Food 
 

               
18 South 

Banks 

                      
Lincs. Data pr

                      
rovided by Sta

 
amford Foodb

18 

bank. 

 

36 

 



 

Mosa
 

Experia
groups 

Looking

 
A 
G 
H 
B 
D 
U 
E 
L –
N 
M 
F –
J –
K 
I –
C 
O 

 

The Mo
to have
are belo

Househ

 

ic 

an Mosaic u
(and subse

g at Mosaic 

– Country L
– Rural Re
– Aspiring H
– Prestige P
– Domestic
– Unclassif
– Suburban
– Transient
– Vintage V
– Family B
– Senior Se
– Rental Hu
– Modest T

– Urban Coh
– City Pros
– Municipa

osaic data c
e certain cha
ow: 

holds with 

uses data fro
equently into

data for Ru

Living 
ality 
Homemake
Positions 
c Success 
fied 
n Stability 
t Renters 
Value 
asics 
ecurity 
ubs 
Traditions 
hesion 

sperity 
al Challenge

can then be 
aracteristics

an income

om many so
o 66 types).

utland show

4
3

ers 

0
4
5
5
3
3

2
3

e 0

used to ide
s commonly

e of less th

ources to g
. 

ws the follow

Households
4,654 
3,756 
1,557 
1,339 
1,100 
0 
456 
515 
558 
329 
399 
199 
145 
23 
3 
0 

entify those 
y associated

at £15,000

roup and se

wing breakd

s Popul
11,00
9,464
3,951
3,285
2,757
1,704
1,073
992 
939 
851 
781 
316 
315 
39 
8 
0 

groups who
d with pove

egment hou

own: 

ation 
1 4
 
 
 
 4
 
 

4

o are statist
rty, three ex

useholds int

Postcodes 
487 
256 
105 
94 
40 
74 
18 
28 
31 
10 
26 
16 
9 
4 
1 
0 

tically more
xamples of 

 

 

37 

to 15 

 likely 
which 



 

Househ

 

Househ

 

holds suffe

holds wher

ering acute

re occupan

e financial s

nts are like

stress 

ly to be stu

 

 

udents/uneemployed 

 

 

 

38 



 

U
exper

Using this da
riencing som

ata we iden
me form of p

data

tified 6 grou
poverty, (gr
a to map wh

ups who are
roups F, I, L
here these h

e more stati
L, M, N, O) a
households

istically mor
and can the
 are: 

re likely to b
en use the M

 

39 

be 
Mosaic 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40 

 



 

Case	S
 

1) Be
rela
left
Gra
chi
her
wa
for 
fam
 
Sh
situ
wit
acc
two
sup
diff
up 
 
Be
ove
Be
bed
sum
con
 
Sh
an
wa
me
he
 

2) Su
any
cat
hav
vill

               
19 Case St
(Adults &

Studies19

cky has liv
ationship b
t her Hous
andmother
ildren. She
r Grandmo

as in Leices
Becky, so

mily. 

e approac
uation and 
th Rutland 
commodat
o feet she 
permarket 
fering wee
her hours

cky wanted
ernight on 
nefit she w
droom tax.
ms just we
nsidered fo

he may wel
d the empl

as affordab
ental health
r children c

resh and h
y help ava
tering and 
ve recently
age standa

                      
tudies 1‐4 tak
& Health) Scru

9	

ved with ch
breakdown
sing Assoc
r, as her ex
e claimed d
other she h
ster (a stra

o she ended

hed Citizen
to see if s
County Co

tion. To imp
got a part 
which brou
kly shift pa

s to full tim

d a 2 bed 
occasions

would have
. In additio

ere not goin
or) a 2 bed

ll have bee
loyment w

ble. With th
h problems
could visit 

his wife Sa
ilable for th
the other i

y bought a 
ards, but v

                      
ken from Rutla
utiny Panel 23

hronic diffic
 and ment
iation prop
x-partner w
disability be
had to mov
nge and d
d up sofa-s

ns Advice R
he could g
ouncil to fi
prove her 
time job (t
ught in jus
atterns she
e. 

property so
 but even 

e to pay £4
n she wou

ng to add u
d property.

en allocate
as sustain

he lack of fu
s it was imp
and stay w

arah came 
hem. They
in the care
house in a

very expen

 
and Citizens A
.02.17) 

culties over
tal health is
perty to live
was moving
enefits. Aft
ve out – th
istant place
surfing wit

Rutland fo
get her child
nd her suit
situation a
the only on
st over £11
e was unab

o that her 
though she

40 per wee
uld have to
up. Becky c

ed a 2 bed p
nable, enab
ull time po
possible fo
with her ov

to Citizens
y are both w
e sector. Th
a small vill
sive for a f

Advice Bureau

r a long pe
ssues arisi
e temporar
g back in t
ter a few m
e only hos
e to her) w
h various

r help with
dren back.
table and a

and to try to
ne on offer
5 per wee
ble to get a

children co
e was enti
k towards
pay 25% 

could not a

property if s
bling her to
sitions ava

or her to se
vernight. 

s Advice R
working ful
hey have tw
age. At £2
first-time b

 Rural Poverty

riod. Due t
ng from th
rily with he
to look afte

months of li
stel accom
which was 
members 

stabilising
We worke

affordable 
o stand on
) in a local
k. As the w
another job

ould visit he
tled to full 
her rent d
of her Cou
afford (or b

she was w
o prove tha
ailable and
cure a pro

utland to s
ll-time in R
wo young c
09,000 it w
uyer. They

y Report 2016

to a 
his, Becky 
er 
er their tw
iving with 

mmodation 
inappropri
of her 

g her 
ed closely 

n her own 
l 
work involv
b to make 

er and sta
Housing 

due to the 
uncil tax. T
be 

working full 
at the prop
d Becky’s 
operty so t

see if there
Rutland, on
children an
was cheap
y had to re

6 (Presented a

 

41 

o 

ate 

ved 

ay 

The 

time 
perty 

hat 

e was 
ne in 
nd 
by 
ally 

at People 



 

stre
pay
Th
diff
sch
one
inc
ant
 
Cit
Tax
the
Las
now
inv
up 
her
the
Lei
 

3) Da
cov
of t
we
vis
is r
bot
 
Giv
soc
sho
rec
fun
 
His
day
cle
det
ma
wa
 

etch thems
y the depo
e whole fa
ficult. They
hool runs a
e long jugg

come and t
ticipated. 

tizens Advi
x Credits a

ere. It was 
st week Sa
w she has 

vestigations
work. Citiz

r fears are
e family inc
icester whe

arryl lives in
vered by H
the under-

eek towards
sit regularly
reliant on d
th cheaper

ven the lac
cial housin
ortfall, whic
ceived a di
nded the sh

s debts are
y living and

ear of the p
termined to
aintain a st
as in one-b

selves to g
osit. 
amily love t
y can only 
and shift tim
gle. The m
their transp

ice Rutland
and Child T
the same f

arah went t
been refe

s…. she is
zens Advic
 realised a

come woul
ere prices 

n a 2 bedro
Housing Be
occupancy
s the rent. 
y but do no
disability be
r properties

ck of altern
ng - the clie
ch was not
scretionary
hortfall, bu

e increasin
d pay for h

payday loan
o keep in t
trong relati
edroomed

get a mortg

the freedom
afford one
mes, comb
ortgage pa

port costs h

d looked w
Tax Credits
for any fina
to the Doc
rred to Lei

s very anxio
ce Rutland 
and with the
d be catas
are lower?

oom housin
enefit when
y regulation
He has tw

ot live with 
enefits. Mo
s and thos

ative acco
ent has no 
t budgeted
y Housing 
t does so n

g as he ek
his children
n sharks, b
the house a
onship with
 accommo

gage, and w

m and spa
e small car 
bined with t
ayments th
have certa

with them a
s but their 
ancial help

ctor as she 
cester Roy
ous about 
 looked at 
e high mor

strophic - w
? 

ng associa
n he moved
ns means 

wo children
him. He is
oving is pa
se with only

ommodatio
option but

d for when 
Payment f
no longer.

kes out his 
n when the
but he is no
as long as
h his childr

odation. 

were helpe

ce they ha
and the co
the lack of

hey have to
ainly proved

at the possi
income wa

p towards C
had felt a 

yal Infirmar
the future,
possible b
rtgage they

would they 

ation prope
d in 5 year
that now h
 from a pre
 unable to 

articularly d
y one bedr

n - both in 
t to remain
the tenanc
from the Lo

disability b
y stay. He
ot sure for 
 possible s
ren, which 

ed by Sara

ave, but the
onflicting d
f public tran
o make are
d higher th

ibility of cla
as too high
Council Ta
lump on h
ry for furth
 should sh

benefits the
y are payin
have  to m

erty. His re
rs ago but t
he has to fi
evious rela
work throu

difficult as t
room in the

the private
 where he 

cy was first
ocal Autho

benefits to 
has just m
how much

since he is 
would be 

ah’s parent

e costs ma
demands o
nsport, ma
e 40% of th
han they 

aiming Wo
h for any he
ax. 
her breast a
er 

he have to 
ey could cl
ng, the imp
move back 

nt was full
the introdu
ind £12.37
ationship, w
ugh ill-hea
there is a l
e area. 

e sector an
is and pay

t taken on.
ority which 

o fund his d
managed to
h longer. H
 desperate
very difficu

 

42 

s to 

ake life 
f 

akes life 
heir net 

rking 
elp 

and 

give 
aim if 

pact on 
to 

y 
uction 
 per 

who 
lth and 
ack of 

nd in 
y the 
. He 
initially 

day to 
o stay 

He is 
e to 
ult if he 



 

4) Ge
not
Tax
the
Be
jus
eye
say
do?
sec
rea
can
 
Cit
som
rec
bot
Ad
pro
Co
pos
 
No
una
she
to l
win
 

 

emma cam
tice from th
x Debt acc

e national m
nefit and s

st about ma
e to counc
ys that the
? She just 
condary sc
ally wants h
n’t afford to

tizens Advi
me discuss
ceived both
th get the d
vice Rutla

oduced and
ounty Coun
sition to sta

onetheless,
able to ma
e should a
let Bristow
ndows and

e into Citiz
he Bailiffs, 
crued over 
minimum w
some Coun
anage to g

cil tax paym
y will take 
recently b

chool and w
him to get 
o replace it

ice Rutland
sion they a
h a financia
debt paid o
nd with ful
d an offer o

ncil so the b
abilise her

, Citizens A
aintain the 
rrange for 

w and Sutor
d doors we

zens Advic
Bristow an
several ye

wage (£7.2
ncil Tax Re
et by … if 

ments whic
away good
ought Gar
will need it
on. She ca
t. 

d immediat
agreed to h
al stateme
off and be 
l details of 
of £50 p/m
bailiff actio
r finances.

Advice Rut
repayment
Gareth to 

r enter the 
re shut and

ce Rutland 
nd Sutor, w
ears. Work
20 p/hr) and
eduction, s
you don’t c

ch she just 
ds from the
reth an i-Pa
t for his ho
an’t bear th

tely contac
hold the ba
nt and a re
sustainabl

f her financ
month was 
on was halt

tland advis
ts, and if s
go and pla
premises,
d locked.

anxious th
who were c
king part-tim
d getting T

she and he
count the b
hasn’t bee
e house - i
ad as he is
mework; h
he thought

cted Rutlan
ailiffs for a w
ealistic offe
le. Gemma
ces and a F
agreed be
ted and Ge

sed Gemm
he knew th

ay with frie
 and so sh

hat she had
collecting a
me (22 hou
Tax Credits
r 11 year o
bank loan a
en able kee
s there an

s about to m
e’s a brigh

t of losing t

nd County 
week prov

er of repay
a returned 
Financial S
tween Gem
emma was

a that if sh
hat Bailiffs 
nds, that s

he should m

d received
a large Co
urs per we
s and Hous
old son Ga
and turn a
ep up. The
nything she
move to 
ht lad and s
that becau

Council an
viding they 
yment that 

to Citizens
Statement 
mma and R
s in a bette

he were rea
were com

she did not
make sure 

 

43 

 a 
uncil 
ek) on 
sing 
areth 

blind 
e notice 
e can 

she 
se she 

nd after 

would 
s 
was 
Rutland 
er 

ally 
ming, 

t have 
all 





Report No: 90/2017
PUBLIC REPORT

SCRUTINY PANEL
27 April 2017

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY
Report of the Director for Resources

Strategic Aim: Sustainable Growth

Exempt Information No

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible:

Mr O Hemsley, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Growth, Trading Services and Resources (except 
Finance)

Contact Officer(s): Debbie Mogg, Director for Resources 01572 758358
dmogg@rutland.gov.uk

Andy Nix, Head of ICT and Customer 
Services

01572 758360
anix@rutland.gov.uk

Ward Councillors All

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Panel:

1. Consider the draft Street Naming and Numbering Policy, and provide feedback to 
the Director of Resources and Portfolio Holder.

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To seek review and approve for a revised policy for the Street Naming and 
Numbering (SNN) of properties and streets in Rutland.

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 Rutland County Council has a statutory duty to provide a SNN service. The 
purpose of this function is to make sure that any new street names and numbers 
are allocated logically with a view to ensuring the efficient delivery of mail and 
emergency service vehicles are able to locate the address easily in an emergency.

2.2 The policy for processing applications for street naming and numbering was last 
reviewed in 2011.

2.3 The development of the National Land and Property Gazetteer (NLPG) and 
associated British Standard for gazetteer records has emphasised the need for a 

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS


clear and comprehensive policy for street naming and numbering. Increased use 
of the NLPG by public services including the Royal Mail and Emergency Services 
places increased importance on the clarity of addresses held within the NLPG.

2.4 The revised policy seeks to ensure that the heritage and nature of the local 
environment are reflected in new street naming schemes while ensuring that 
properties are addressed responsibly within the guidelines of the NLPG to ensure 
residents do not encounter difficulties with mail deliveries or receiving services.

2.5 The policy clarifies the approach on the naming of streets after living or deceased 
individuals:

i) In order to avoid causing offence either by inclusion or exclusion, no 
street shall be named after any living persons. Similarly the names of 
deceased persons will not be accepted unless they meet the criteria 
below:

ii) Only names of local historical figures or events where their role has 
benefitted society will be considered providing the proposal is supported 
by documentation to show the person to have been one of the highest 
standing and such a view is likely to be shared by the public at large. To 
ensure that this decision is made with sufficient hindsight, the proposed 
person has to have been dead for at least 5 years before the name can 
be used. Consent from the family is required along with evidence.

2.6 In the unlikely event of no compromise between the developer, the Ward 
Councillor and the Parish Councillor, the previous policy sought a final decision 
from the Planning Development Control Committee.  The new policy leaves this 
decision with the Local Authority. 

2.7 Under Section 93 of The Local Government Act 2003, Councils were given the 
power to trade and charge, on a cost recovery model, for certain services.  

2.8 Therefore, the Council cannot charge for the street naming service but it can 
charge for elements of the naming and numbering function.  The policy has been 
updated to include charges for aspects of the SNN service and these are detailed 
in Appendix C of the policy and these are comparable to other Local Authorities 
where charging takes place.

2.9 The policy reflects the renaming and renumbering of streets and buildings. The 
policy is that before making any changes we will consult with all residents affected 
by the proposals. It is unlikely that the Council would proceed with a proposal 
unless two thirds of the residents support the change.

2.10 The policy clarifies that we now include the naming of a property as a formal part 
of the policy. Properties cannot replace their property number with a name but can 
request that the name is formally added to their NLPG record and public services 
including the Royal Mail and Emergency Services updated.

2.11 The policy clarifies the approach to naming a property and that the Council will 
update the main NLPG address – in addition to the number which cannot be 
removed.



3 CONCLUSION 

3.1 The Resources Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider the draft Street Naming and 
Numbering Policy, and provide feedback to the Director of Resources and Portfolio 
Holder.

4 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

4.1 No additional background papers.

5 APPENDICES

5.1 Appendix  – Draft Street Naming and Numbering Policy

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 





Street Naming and Numbering 
Policy

Version & Policy Number Version 2.2
Guardian Andy Nix 
Date Produced 1 January 2017
Next Review Date 1 January 2020

Approved by Scrutiny Pending
Approved by Cabinet Pending
Approved by Full Council n/a



Page 2 of 18

Summary of document
This document sets out the legislation that grants us the authority to street name and 
number, while also setting out the process for an application and the guidelines all 
applications should follow to be successful.

Contents

Page
1.0 Introduction 4
2.0 Purpose of Policy 4
3.0 Legal Framework 4
4.0 The National Land and Property Gazetteer 5
5.0 Operational Guidance 6

5.1 Street Naming 6
5.2 Naming Conventions 6
5.3 Property Numbering 8
5.4 Numbering Conventions 9
5.5 Postcodes 10
5.6 Charging for the Street Naming and Numbering Service 11
5.7 Renaming and Renumbering of Street and Buildings 11
5.8 Naming a property 12

6.0 Contact Details 13

Appendix A – Legislation 15
Appendix B – Distribution List 17
Appendix C – Charging 18



Page 3 of 18

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Rutland County Council is the Local Authority responsible for the 
administration of the Street Naming and Numbering process (SNN), 
and has the legal responsibility to ensure that streets are named and 
properties are numbered. Property addressing is an important function 
as organisations such as the Royal Mail and Emergency Services, as 
well as the general public need an efficient and accurate means of 
locating and referencing properties. 

1.2 New street names need to be accepted by the Local Authority and will 
be subject to a consultation process before approval to avoid 
duplication or confusing arising from use of similar names in close 
proximity but also fitting with the Naming Conventions.

1.3 New addresses and amendments to existing addresses are registered 
by Royal Mail when notified by the Local Authority as the responsible 
body. Postcodes are allocated by Royal Mail and allocation is made in 
conjunction with the official addresses approved by the Local Authority.

1.4 This policy will be reviewed every three years or sooner if a major 
change in the process is required through the introduction of new 
legislation for example.

2.0 Purpose of Policy

2.1 This policy provides a framework for Rutland County Council to operate 
its street naming and numbering function effectively and efficiently for 
the benefit of Rutland’s residents, businesses and visitors. It will also 
act as a guide for developers when considering new names for streets.

2.2 The policy defines:-

2.2.1 The legal framework for operation of the street naming and 
numbering service.

2.2.2 Protocols for determining official street names and numbers.

2.2.3 Recommendations to prevent confusion by duplicating or using 
similar names to any already in use.

3.0 Legal Framework

3.1 Rutland County Council District Council has the legal responsibility to 
ensure that streets are named and properties are numbered. 



Page 4 of 18

3.2 The authority has the power to approve or reject property addresses 
submitted by developers or the general public, or prescribe its own 
addressing scheme.

3.3 The legislation under which naming and numbering can be carried out 
is:

 Sections 64 and 65 of the Town Improvement Clauses Act 
1847

 Section 21 of the Public Health Amendment Act 1907.
 Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003.

3.4 Section 64 and 65 of the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 gives 
the Local Authority the ability to number the properties and ensures 
those occupiers of dwellings and other buildings in the street mark the 
buildings with such numbers as approved.

3.5 Relevant extracts of the above legislation are shown in Appendix A.

4.0 The National Land and Property Gazetteer (NLPG)

4.1 The National Land and Property Gazetteer (NLPG) is the de facto 
addressing solution for local authorities and increasingly so for its 
partners. Local Government has invested heavily in creating the NLPG 
and is committed to using the NLPG for all its addressing requirements 
and services.

4.2 The NLPG is the definitive address list that provides unique 
identification of properties and conforms to the British Standard, 
BS7666:2006. The NLPG covers the whole of England and Wales and 
contains more than 30 million residential, business and non-mailing 
addresses.

4.3 The NLPG is a comprehensive and continually updated database, 
created by those with local knowledge in each local authority, the body 
with legal responsibility for street naming and numbering of property. 
As local authorities are the originators of addressing information an 
address dataset, developed and maintained at source by users of the 
data, will inevitably have the highest level of currency and 
completeness.

4.4 The Council is committed to this initiative through its own Local Land 
and Property Gazetteer (LLPG) which, together with the other local 
authorities in England and Wales, makes up the NLPG. Street naming 
and numbering is the single most important source of address change 
intelligence for the Council’s LLPG and therefore the NLPG.



Page 5 of 18

5.0 Operational Guidance

5.1 Street Naming

5.1.1 A person who creates a new street has the right to propose a 
name for that street.  Proposals should be submitted to the 
Street Naming and Number Officer at Rutland County Council 
District Council.

5.1.2 Any suggested street names will be checked to ensure that they 
meet the naming criteria. If a suggestion does not meet the 
naming criteria it will be rejected.

5.1.3 Discussion takes place with relevant Councillors and Parish 
Council(s). They may either accept the suggestion or object to it 
and offer their own alternatives.

5.1.4 In the event of an unresolved disagreement, where a suitable 
name cannot be agreed upon, then the Local Authority will 
allocate a name for the street(s).

5.1.5 Where a street is created as all or part of a new development, all 
costs for the erection of new street name plates will be paid for 
by the developer.

5.1.6 There is a specification for the plates and their locations and the 
Authority should be contacted for advice. Maintenance of street 
name plates becomes the responsibility of Rutland County 
Council District Council only once the developer has left the site 
and the street has been adopted.

5.1.7 No street name plate is allowed to be erected until the street 
name has been confirmed in writing by Rutland County Council 
District Council. 

5.1.8 The proposed street name(s) will be sought from the developer, 
but should the developer not put forward any suggestions, the 
Local Authority in conjunction with relevant Councillors and 
Parish Council(s) and will seek suitable name(s). Any such 
name(s) will be forwarded to the developer for their comments.

5.2 Naming Conventions

5.2.1 Wherever practicable a new street(s) with 5 or less properties 
and where the new street cannot be further extended, will be 
numbered into the primary road in which they are accessed. 



Page 6 of 18

5.2.2 Where a new road is an extension of an existing road, it will not 
be allocated a new street name, and the properties will be 
numbered into the existing road

5.2.3 New street names shall not duplicate any name already in use in 
the County.

5.2.4 Distinctions by suffix within the same or adjoining area will not 
be permitted, e.g. Butterworth Drive and Butterworth Road.

5.2.5 Street names with phonetically similar names will not be 
permitted, e.g. Willows Avenue and Winnows Avenue.

5.2.6 Street names that may be considered or construed as obscene, 
racist or which would contravene any aspect of the Councils 
equal opportunity policies will not be acceptable.

5.2.7 Street names that may be open to re-interpretation by graffiti or 
shortening of the name should be avoided.

5.2.8 New street names shall not be assigned to new developments 
when such developments can be satisfactorily included in the 
current numbering scheme of the street providing access.

5.2.9 In order to avoid causing offence either by inclusion or 
exclusion, no street shall be named after any living persons. 
Similarly the names of deceased persons will not be accepted 
unless they meet the criteria below:

5.2.9.1 Only names of local historical figures or events where 
their role has benefitted society will be considered 
providing the proposal is supported by documentation 
to show the person to have been one of the highest 
standing and such a view is likely to be shared by the 
public at large. 

5.2.9.2 To ensure that this decision is made with sufficient 
hindsight, the proposed person has to have been 
dead for at least 5 years before the name can be 
used. Consent from the family is required along with 
evidence.

5.2.10 New street names shall not end in ‘s’ where it can be construed 
as either a possessive or plural, neither shall they commence 
with the world ‘The’.

5.2.11 Where possible, words of more than three syllables and the use 
of more than two words (excluding the thoroughfare type) should 
be avoided.



Page 7 of 18

5.2.12 Street names are unacceptable if they are likely to cause 
spelling difficulties, as they may lead to confusion in an 
emergency situation or result in demands for a change of 
address from occupiers. 

5.2.13 Where possible names should reflect the history of the site and 
acknowledge the geography of the area.

5.2.14 Names with a common theme are encouraged on large 
developments, preferably with a local or historic connection. 
Two developments with the same theme within the County 
should be avoided.

5.2.15 Any street name that promotes a company, service or product 
will not be allowed. Names based on a developers trading name 
are seen as advertising and are not acceptable.

5.3 Property Numbering

5.3.1 Section 64 and 65 of the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 
gives the Local Authority the ability to number the properties and 
ensure that occupiers of dwellings and other buildings in the 
street mark the buildings with such numbers as approved. 

5.3.2 When making an application for a plot or development to be 
numbered, the developer must provide either in hard copy or 
electronically, the following information:-

5.3.2.1 Planning Application Number – Street Naming and 
Numbering can only be administered subject to 
approved planning, without this no address will be 
allocated.

5.3.2.2 Plans clearly showing plot numbers, location in 
relation to existing land and property, and the 
placement of front doors and primary access for each 
plot.

5.3.2.3 Internal floor plans, if appropriate, for development 
that is subdivided at unit or floor level.

5.3.2.4 Building Regulation Number, once available, to 
indicate that work has commenced.

5.3.2.5 New properties in an existing unnumbered street will 
require a property name. For an infill development of 
two or more properties accessed by a private drive, 
and if deemed appropriate by the Street Naming and 
Numbering Officer, we will agree with the developer 
the name of a property group.



Page 8 of 18

5.3.2.6 Property with a premise number must always use and 
display that number. Where a property has a name 
and an official number the number must always be 
included in the address and displayed on the property. 

5.3.2.7 The property name cannot be regarded as an 
alternative. This is enforceable under section 65 of the 
Towns Improvement Act 1847.

5.4 Numbering Conventions

5.4.1 All new property developments shall be numbered rather than 
named. Exceptions may apply in existing streets where no 
numbering scheme exists.

5.4.2 New streets shall be numbered with odd numbers on the left 
hand side and even numbers on the right, commencing from the 
primary entrance to the street. Where the street is a 
thoroughfare between two other streets, the numbering shall 
commence at the end of the street nearest the centre of the 
town or village.

5.4.3 Consecutive numbering may also be used in a cul-de-sac or in a 
situation where there is no scope for future development in the 
street. Properties will be numbered consecutively with number 1 
of the left working in a clockwise direction

5.4.4 The number of a property will be allocated to the street onto 
which the front door faces. If the front door provides no direct 
access from that street, an exception may be made.

5.4.5 Numbers should remain in sequence and there shall be no 
exclusion of any number due to superstition or personal 
preference, e.g. 4, 13, 17.

5.4.6 Flats and units shall be given individual numbers where 
possible; the sequence of the numbering depends on access to 
front doors of individual premises.

5.4.7 If a block of flats is built in the middle of a numbered street and 
cannot be integrated into the numbering of that street, a name 
will be given to the block and the flats numbered internally.

5.4.8 When new properties are built on an existing street and there 
are no available numbers to use whilst retaining the current 
sequence, a letter shall be used as a suffix, e.g. 15a.

5.4.9 New street names shall not be assigned for the sole purpose of 
avoiding numbers with a suffix.



Page 9 of 18

5.4.10 A business name shall not take the place of a number of a 
building name.

5.4.11 Private garages and buildings used for housing vehicles and 
similar purposes will not be numbered.

5.4.12 A piece of land e.g. a farmer’s field, cannot be given an official 
address, only property on that piece of land can have a 
conventional address for the purposes of delivering mail and 
services.

5.4.13 On a street within numbers, a name will be allocated to new 
property.

5.4.14 All property numbers should be visible from the highway. This 
may mean numbers being displayed on posts, gates or fences 
(and not necessarily the door of the property) to aid easy 
identification of the property, particularly in the event of an 
emergency.

5.4.15 Where an existing numbered property is converted into flats, the 
flats shall be numbered, e.g. Flat 1, 20 High Street. A numbering 
scheme such as Flat A/Flat B or First Floor Flat should be 
avoided. The same shall apply for units, apartments and other 
forms of property subdivision.

5.4.16 Annexes to buildings e.g. granny flats or ancillary 
accommodation, will be given the prefix “The Annex”. The rest of 
the address will be the same as the parent property e.g. The 
Annex, 1 High Street.

5.5 Postcodes

5.5.1 Allocation of postcodes is managed by the Royal Mail and must 
be confirmed by them.

5.5.2 Rutland County Council District Council will undertake this 
process on the applicant’s behalf and inform the applicant and 
other interested parties.

5.5.3 The maintenance of postcode information, and any future 
changes to individual postcodes or postcode sectors is the 
responsibility of the Royal Mail. Rutland County Council District 
Council accepts no responsibility or liability for omission of 
postcode or post town information, nor any failure of services 
arising from this omission.

5.5.4 The Local Authority is not liable or responsible for third parties 
updating their databases with address information.



Page 10 of 18

5.6 Charging for the Street Naming and Numbering Service

5.6.1 The power to charge falls under Section 93 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 (see Appendix A). This sets out that a 
Local Authority may charge for discretionary services. 
Discretionary services are those services that an authority has 
the power but not a duty to provide. An authority may charge 
where the person who receives the service has agreed to its 
provision and the charge must not exceed the cost of providing 
the service.

5.6.2 Therefore, the Council cannot charge for the street naming 
service but it can charge for elements of the naming and 
numbering function which are a discretionary service by virtue of 
Section 64 and 65 of the 1847 Act coupled with Section 93 of 
the 2003 Act.

5.6.3 For Street Naming and Numbering these charges would cover:

5.6.3.1 Consultation and liaising with other external 
organisations such as the Royal Mail and Emergency 
Services (as a non-statutory element of the naming of 
streets).

5.6.3.2 Alterations in either name or numbers to new 
developments after initial naming and numbering has 
been undertaken.

5.6.3.3 Notifications to those organisations listed in Appendix 
B.

5.6.3.4 Confirmation of addresses previously issued.

5.6.3.5 Challenges to existing official names, numbers or 
addresses held within the street naming and 
numbering records.

5.6.4 Charging rates are shown in Appendix C.

5.7 Renaming and Renumbering of Streets and Buildings

5.7.1 Renaming of a street and renumbering of buildings is very time-
consuming process and may cause costs or disruption to 
individual occupiers and owners and wherever possible will be 
avoided. Hence, it is usually only done as a last resort i.e. 
renaming of a street is normally only considered if consistent 
problems occur for the Emergency Services and the 
renumbering of properties is only considered when infill etc. is 
so great, that numbers to the new properties cannot be 



Page 11 of 18

allocated. The existing street may then be subject to a 
renumbering scheme.

5.7.2 Where an order for renaming of an existing street is made, the 
Local Authority will display notices at each end of the street or 
part of the street affected.

5.7.3 It should be appreciated that changing a street name or 
renumbering properties can cause a great deal of inconvenience 
for residents. The Council are therefore reluctant to make 
changes without good reason. Before making any changes we 
will consult with all residents affected by the proposals. The 
Council would not proceed with a proposal unless two thirds of 
the residents support the change. The Council may require 
residents requesting a change of street name to pay the 
Council’s cost for the process. 

5.7.4 Where any order for renaming of a street is made, the Ward 
Councillors will be consulted.

5.7.5 Where an order for renaming of a street is made the proposed 
name must follow the naming procedures and must also fall 
within the naming conventions.

5.8 Naming a Property

5.8.1 Property owners can request that the Local Authority official 
updates the property to include a property name. 

5.8.2 The Royal Mail will not accept name changes from anyone other 
than the local authority.

5.8.3 To request a change to a property name, the owner must make 
an application for the change. 

5.8.4 Requests can only be accepted from the owners of properties 
and not tenants. The name cannot formally be changed where 
the property is in the process of being purchased, that is, until 
exchange of contracts, although we can give guidance on the 
acceptability of a chosen name before this.

5.8.5 A check is made by the Local Authority to ensure there is no 
other property in the locality with the name. Under no 
circumstances will we allow a replicated name in the same 
postal area, the Street Naming and Numbering Officer can 
refuse such names. 

5.8.6 We also strongly recommend against similar sounding names to 
existing properties, although we may allow these. However, the 



Page 12 of 18

Royal Mail cannot guarantee mail delivery if our advice is 
ignored. 

5.8.7 Property owners should be aware that owners/residents of 
properties that are affected by the choice of a similar sounding 
name may take legal action if they have delivery problems 
caused by such name changes.

5.8.8 Under no circumstances will we allow a name that is offensive, 
or can be construed to be offensive.

5.8.9 If the property has a house number, it is not possible to replace 
the number with a name. However, an 'alias name' can be 
added to an address. The name will be held by the Royal Mail 
on their 'alias file' and will not form part of the official address, 
the alias name can only be used with the property number, not 
as a replacement of it.

5.8.10 Once all checks are satisfactorily complete and any necessary 
fees received the name of the property will be changed and the 
Local Authority will advise the relevant parties including Royal 
Mail, Council Tax, the Local Land and Property Gazetteer team.

5.8.11 This process is subject to charging see Appendix C. 



Page 13 of 18

6.0 Contact Details

6.1 Enquiries should be directed to:

Corporate Address Management Team
Rutland County Council District Council
Catmose House 
Catmose Street
Oakham
LE15 6HP

Tel: 01572 722577
Email: snn@rutland.gov.uk

6.2 Applications for Street Naming and Numbering can be made online at: 

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-
control/planning/street-name-and-numbering/

mailto:snn@rutland.gov.uk


Page 14 of 18

Appendix A - Legislation

Section 64 Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 - Houses to be numbered and 
streets named

“The commissioners shall from time to time cause the houses and buildings in 
all or any of the streets to be marked with numbers as they think fit, and shall 
cause to be put up or painted on a conspicuous part of some house, building, 
or place, at or near each end, corner, or entrance of every such street, the 
name by which such street is to be known; and every person who destroys, 
pulls down, or defaces any such number or name, or puts up any number of 
name different from the number or name put up by the commissioners, shall 
be liable to a penalty not exceeding level 1 on the standard scale for every 
such offence.”

Section 65 Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 - Numbers of houses to be 
renewed by occupiers

“The occupiers of houses and other buildings in the streets shall mark their 
houses with such numbers as the commissioners approve of, and shall renew 
such numbers as often as they become obliterated or defaced; and every 
such occupier who fails, within one week after notice for that purpose from the 
commissioners, to mark his house with a number approved of by the 
commissioner, or to renew such number when obliterated, shall be liable to a 
penalty not exceeding level 1 on the standard scale, and the commissioners 
shall cause such numbers to be marked or to be renewed, as the case may 
require, and the expense thereof shall be repaid to them by such occupier, 
and shall be recoverable as damages.”

Section 17 Public Health Amendment Act 1907 – Notice to urban Local 
Authority before street is named

“The local authority may, with the consent of two-thirds in number of the 
ratepayers, and persons, who are liable to pay an amount in respect of council 
tax, in any street, alter the name of such street or any part of such street. The 
local authority may cause the name of any street or of any part of any street to 
be painted or otherwise marked on a conspicuous part of any building or other 
erection.”

Local Government Act 2003

Brought about new devolved powers for Local Authorities, these included 
giving Councils new powers to trade and charge for non-statutory services if 
they are Best Value Authorities (Section 93 of the Act). Authorities, if charging 
for discretionary services, have a duty to charge no more than the costs they 
incur in providing the service. The aim is to encourage improvements to 



Page 15 of 18

existing services and develop new ones that will help to improve the overall 
service they provide to the community, not to make a profit.



Page 16 of 18

Appendix B - Distribution List

Distribution List for Street Naming and Numbering information

Internal:

Electoral Role
Land Charges
Council Tax
Highways
Building Control
Customer Services
Digital Rutland
Licensing

External: 

Ambulance Service
Leicestershire Police
Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service
Land Registry
Royal Mail
Geoplace



Page 17 of 18

Appendix C - Charging

There are 6 types of charges that apply for the Street Naming and Numbering 
services;

 Addition/Amendment/Removal of property names (both for residential and 
commercial properties)

 New development on existing street (numbering of properties only required);
 New development to include naming of new streets (naming of streets and 

numbering of properties);
 Renumbering of scheme following developers replan of site layout (after the 

notification of numbering issued);
 Confirmation of official address;
 Challenge/request/revision to existing street naming and numbering schemes.

Charges cover:
 Consultation and liaising with other external organisations such as the Royal 

Mail and Emergency Services (as a non-statutory element of the naming of 
streets).

 Alterations in either name or numbers to new developments after initial 
naming and numbering has been undertaken.

 Notifications to those organisations listed in Appendix B.
 Confirmation of addresses previously issued.
 Challenges to existing official names, numbers or addresses held within the 

street naming and numbering records.

Schedule of Charges Street Naming and Numbering Service
(April 2017)

Property Name Additions/Amendments/Removals £30.00

Numbering of New Properties
1 Property £50.00
2 – 5 Properties £75.00
6 – 10 Properties £100.00
11 – 25 Properties £175.00
26 – 50 Properties £250.00
51 – 100 Properties £400.00
101+ Properties £500.00 plus £10 per plot

Division of Properties, same as numbering of new properties (and based
on number of properties created including the original) See numbering of new properties.

Confirmation of address to solicitors/conveyance’s/occupiers or owners £25.00
Renumbering of scheme following development replan (after notification of numbering 
scheme issued) £100.00 plus £10.00 per plot
Street renaming following request (price costed per request)
Issue of address following demolition and reconstruction. £50.00 if address differs from 
that initially allocated.



Page 18 of 18

A large print version of this document is 
available on request

Rutland County Council
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland LE15 6HP

01572 722 577
enquiries@rutland.gov.uk

www.rutland.gov.uk

mailto:enquiries@rutland.gov.uk
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	7 POVERTY IN RUTLAND - GREEN PAPER
	91-2017 a Scrutiny Cover Report for Green Paper
	91-2017 b Poverty in Rutland - Green Paper v.4 FINAL
	91-2017 c Green Paper Appendix A - Feedback from Workshop (September 2016)
	91-2017 d Appendix B Supporting Data - Poverty in Rutland v.2

	8 STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY
	90/2017 - Street Naming and Numbering Policy - Appendices


